67665

3-P-79-0058-03

INTEGRATED POPULATION PROGRAM KOREAN COUNTRY REPORT

Submitted to

INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH CENTRE

AUGUST 1982

ARCHIV 67665

AND I FRANCE

10RC-LID 67665

INTEGRATED POPULATION PROGRAM

KOREAN COUNTRY REPORT

submitted

to

INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH CENTRE

August 1982

by

Kong-Kyun Ro,

Principal Investigator

and

Byong Woo Lee,

Researcher,

Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology Jong Kun Kim,

Project Administrator and co-investigator

and

Moon Ho Chung,

Senior Researcher and Field Director

School of Public Health, Seoul National University

DROden (02

ARCHIV 372 (519.5) 7 6

Acknowledgement

First of all, we would like to thank the International Development Research Center for sponsoring the research component of the integrated population program. Dr. P. V. Flores, Senior Program Officer, Social Science Division, Asia Regional Office provided us advice and encouragement throughtout the entire course of the research Dr. Fong Chan Onn of Malay University gave us advice and guidance at the crucial stages of the study. Ms. Sherry Sherwood, Program Officer at the IDRC's home office gave us valuable suggestions on how to improve our research at the workshops held at Singapore and Manila. Mrs. June Cheok at Asia Regional Office was very helpful in taking care of us at all the workshops held for this project.

In Korea, numerous people helped us in collecting data, coding and data analyses. We would like thank them individually. There are, however, too many people involved to list their names here. Among them, we would like to single out Mr. Byong Woo Lee of Korea Advanced Institute of Science and Technology for helping us in data analyses. Professor Moon Ho Chung, Senior Researcher for the study, was responsible for all the field activities and he discharged his responsibility admirably. The people living in the experimental sites gave us sincere cooperation without which this study would have been impossible to carry out. The principal investigator used some of his time during his stay at the East-West Population Institute during the summer of 1982 to finish up the writing of the final report. Ms. Kathy Martinex of the EWPI did a meticulous job of typing the final report. We would like to thank all of these people.

> Kong-Kyun Ro Principal Investigator and Jong-Kun Kim

Project Administrator and co-investigator

August 1982 Seoul, Korea

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1	I: Introduction	1-1
1.1:	The Objective and Background of Study	1-1
1.2:	Review of Literature and General Background Information	1-4
1.3:	Hypotheses for the Study	1-9
1.4:	Methodology and Implementation	1-11
	1.4.1: Selection of the Experimental Sites	1-11
	1.4.2: Methods and Procedure	1-12
1.5:	Summary of Study Findings and Policy Implications	1-16
Chapt	er I Footnotes	1-21
Chapter 1	I: Country Review	2-1
2.1:	Review of Population and Socioeconomic Development and Rationales for the Selection of Control Variables	2-1
	2.1.1: Urbanization	2-1
	2.1.2: Education	
`	2.1.3: Industrialization and Per Capita Income	2–6
	2.1.4: Investment in Health	2-9
2.2:	Review of Korea's Population Programs	2-12
	2.2.1: Policies to Alter Son Preference	2-15
	2.2.2: Incentive System to Lower Fertility	2-16
	2.2.3: Health Policy for Population Program	2-17
2.3:	Structure of Population Policy Making and Implementation in Korea	2-19
Chapt	er II Footnotes	2-27
Appen	dix to Chapter II: Survey Questionnare Form	2-29

Chapter 1	III: Overview of Program Under Study	3-1
3.1:	Description of the Project Under Study	3-1
	3.1.1: Historical Background of Choonseong Gun Community Health Program	3-1
	3.1.2: Population and Geographic Characteristics of Experiemental Sites	3-4
3.1:	The Integrated Population Program Under the Study in Relation to National Population Program	3-16
Chapter 1	V: Implementation of the Study	
4.1:	Questionnaire Making	4-1
4.2:	Sample Selection	4-3
4.3:	The Surveys	4-4
4.4:	Method of Analysis	4 –5
Chapter V	7: Definitions and Selection of Variables	
5.1:	Impact Variables	5-1
5.2:	Integration Variables	5-3
5.3:	Control VariablesDemographic, Socioeconomic and Other Variables Affecting Program Performance	5-7
Chapt	er V Footnotes	[*] 5–11
Chapter V	7I: Analysis of Data	6-1
6.1:	Descriptive Analysis of Control Variables	6-1
6.2:	Comparative Analysis of Impact Variables Between 1980 and 1981	6-5
	6.2.1: Frequency Distribution Charts	6-5
	6.2.2: Cross Tabulations	6-17
	6.2.3: Chi-Squares Tests	6-27
6.3:	Multivariate Analysis of the Effects of Program Inputs on Impact Variables	6-32

Chapter VI Footnotes

Chapter V	/II: Mair	n Findings and Policy Implication	7-1
7.1:	Main Fir	ndings on Hypotheses Testings	7-1
	7.1.1:	Result of Testing Hypothesis (I) on Health and Fertility	7-1
	7.1.2:	Result of Testing Hypothesis (II) on Community Participation	7-6
	7.1.3:	Result of Testing Hypothesis (III) on Program Efficiency	7-6
7.2:	Effect o Variable	of Control Variables on the Performance es	77
7.3:	Implicat	cions of Findings	7-8

•

iii

List of Tables

Table 1.1:	Program Input by Area	1-13
Table 1.2:	Sample Households and the Universe	1-14
Table 2-1:	Population and Intercensal Growth Rates, 1925-79	2-2
Table 2-2:	Crude Birth Rates, 1924-79	2-4
Table 2-3:	Population Growth Rate in and Distribution among Metropolitan Areas, 1955-75	2-5
Table 2-4:	Fertility Rates in Cities and Rural Areas, 1960-75	2-5
Table 2-5:	Relationship Between Per Cent of Farming Households, Migration Efficiency and Fertility Rate	27
Table 2-6:	Primary School Enrollment Rate and Middle and High School Advancement Rate, 1965-78	2-8
Table 2-7:	Relationship Between Educational Level and Fertility, 1978	2-8
Table 2-8:	Production by Industry, 1960-79	2-10
Table 2-9:	Per Capita GNP in 1975 Constant U.S. Dollars, 1971-78	2-10
Table 2-10:	Relationship Between Income and Fertility Rate, 1978	2-11
Table 2-11:	Trend in Health Facilities and Personnel, 1961-78	2-13
Table 2-12:	Life Expectancy and Infant Mortality, 1955-71	2–13
Table 2-13:	Relationship Between the Number of Physicians and Fertility, 1978	2-14
Table 2-14:	Fertility Control Program, 1962-77	2- 20
Table 3-1:	Regional Characteristics by Area	3-12
Table 3-2:	Comparison of Farm Population and Cultivated Land Between Myons	3- 13
Table 3-3:	Population Composition and Dependency Ratio	3-14
Table 3-4:	Age Composition of Fecund Women Between Myons	3-15
Table 4-1:	Time Table and Process of Data Collection of Baseline Survey	4-2

Table 5-1:	Definition of Integration Variable	5-4
Table 6-1:	Distribution of Household (Heads) by Occupational Categories for Each Myon, 1980	6-6
Table 6-2a:	Cross Tabulation Between the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Curative Service and Myon, 1980	6-18
Sable 6-2b:	Cross Tabulation Eetween the Number of Visits to Fealth Facilities for Curative Service and Nyon, 1981	6-19
¶able 6-3a:	Cross Tabulation Between the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Preventive Services and Hyon, 1980	6-20
¶ab]e 6-3b:	Cross Tabulation Ectween the Number of Visits to Ecalth Facilities for Preventive Services and Hyon, 1981	6-21
5ab]e 6-4a:	Cross Tabulation Between the Number of Fealth Workers' Home Visits and Nyon, 1980	6-23
Sable 6-4b:	Cross Tabulation Between the Number of Health Workers' Home Visits and Myon, 1981	6-24
]able 6-5a:	Cross Tabulation Ectween the Number of Attendance at Nothers' Club Meetings and Eyon, 1980	€-25
Table 6-5b:	Cross Tabulation Estween the Number of Attendance at Nothers' Club Meetings and Eyon, 1981	6-26
Table 6-6:	Frequency Table of the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Curative Care for Fach Nyon, 1980 and 1981	€-28
Table 6-7:	Frequency Table of the Lumber of Visits to Realth Facilities for Preventive Care for Fach Myon, 1980 and 1981	6-28
Table 6-8:	Frequency Distribution of the Number of Realth Workers' Home Visits for Fach Myon, 1980 and 1981	6-30
Table 6-9:	Frequency Distribution of the Humber of Attendance at Pothers' Club Neetings for Fach Fyon, 1980 and 1981	€-3(
Table 6-10:	Prequency Distribution of Funder of Filth Control Practice: for Each Myon, 1980 and 1981	€- 3]
5able 6-]]a:	Recreasion Where the Rependent Variable is the Number of Visits to Fealth Facilities for Those Households with Cre or Fore Illness, 1980	6-34

Table 6-11b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Those Households with One or More Illness, 1981	6- 35
Table 6-llc:	t Test of the Difference Between 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regressions	6-36
Table 6-12a:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Curative or Preventive Care, 1980	6-37
Table 6-12b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Curative or Preventive Care, 1981	6-38
Table 6-12c:	t Test of the Difference Between 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regression	6-39
Table 6-13a:	Regression Where the Dependent Variables is the Number of Visits to Health Facilties for Curative Services, 1980	6-41
Table 6-13b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variables is the Number of Visits to Health Facilties for Curative Services, 1981	6-42
Table 6-13c:	t Test of the Difference Between 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regressions	6-43
Table 6-14a:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Preventive Services, 1980	6-45
Table 6-14b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Preventive Services, 1981	6-46
Table 6-14c:	t Test of the Difference Between 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regressions	6-47
Table 6-15a:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Health Workers' Home Visits, 1980	6-49
Table 6-15b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Number of Health Workers' Home Visits, 1981	6-50
Table 6-15c:	t Test of the Difference of 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regressions	6-52
Table 6-16a:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Acceptance Rate of Family Planning, 1980	6-54
Table 6-16b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Acceptance Rate of Family Planning, 1981	6-55

Table 6-16c:	t Test of the Difference Between 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regressions	6-56
Table 6-17a:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Attendance Rate at Mothers' Club Meetings, 1980	6-58
Table 6-17b:	Regression Where the Dependent Variable is the Attendance Rate at Mothers' Club Meetings, 1981	6-59
Table 6-17c:	t Test of the Difference Between 1980 and 1981 b-coefficients in the Above Regressions	6 -60
Tables 6-18 a, b, c:	Comparative Analysis of Cost per Service Between Myons	6-63 and 6-64
Table 6-19a:	Correlation Matrix of All Variables Used	667
Table 6-19 b:	Explanation of Symbols Used for Variables in the Above Matrix	6-68
Table 7—1:	Summary of Findings of Multiple Regressions, 1980 and 1981	7-3

F-1

List of Figures

Figure 1.1:	Conceptual Model of Hypothesis	1-10
Figure 2-1:	Organization Chart of Family Planning System	2-24
Figure 2-2:	Organizational Chart for Implementating Korea's Population Policy	2-25
Figure 3-1:	Location of Survey Areas	3–5
Figure 3-2:	Population Composition by Sex and Age, Korea	3-6
Figure 3-3:	Population Composition by Sex and Age Shindong Myon	3-8
Figure 3 -4:	Population Composition by Sex and Age Pogok Myon	3-9
Figure 3-5:	Population Composition by Sex and Age Moonmak Myon	3-10
Figure 3-6:	Population Composition by Sex and Age Seo Myon	3-11
Figure 3-7:	Organizational Chart of National Population Program	3-17
Figure 4-1:	Number and the Location of Households Interviewed in the 4 Enumeration Districts in the Study Areas I and II	4-6
Figure 4-2:	Number and the Location of Households Interviewed in the 4 Enumeration Districts in the Control Areas I and II	4-7
Figure 5-1:	Organizational Interaction Chart Among Government, Seoul National University and Community for the High Integration Area	5-6
Figure 5-2:	Operational Interaction Among Government, SNU and Community for the High Integration and Non-Integration Area	5-8
Figure 6-1:	Distribution of Households by Economic Status for Each Myon	6-2
Figure 6-2:	Distribution of Households by Income for Each Myon	6-3
Figure 6-3:	Distribution of Household Heads by Occupation for Each Myon	6-4

Figure 6-	-4:	Distribution of Household Heads by Schooling Years for Each Myon	6-7
Figure 6-	-5a:	Distribution of Households by the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Curative Services for Each Myon in 1980	6-8
Figure 6-	-5b:	Distribution of Households by the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Curative Services for Each Myon in 1981	6-9
Figure 6-	-6a:	Distribution of Households by the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Preventive Service for Each Myon in 1980	6-11
Figure 6-	-6b:	Distribution of Households by the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Preventive Service for Each Myon in 1981	6-12
Figure 6-	-7a:	Distribution of Households by the Number of Health Workers' Home Visits for Each Myon in 1980	6-13
Figure 6-	-7b:	Distribution of Households by the Number of Health Workers' Home Visits for Each Myon in 1981	6-14
Figure 6-	-8a:	Distribution of Households by the Attendance at Mothers' Club for Each Myon in 1980	6-15
Figure 6-	-8b:	Distribution of Households by the Attendance at Mothers' Club for Each Myon in 1981	6-16

•

.

Chapter I: INTRODUCTION

1.1 THE OBJECTIVE AND BACKGROUND OF THE STUDY:

This study has two components. One is the action component and the other the evaluation, research and analysis. For the action part, we have established a model integrated program of basic health services and birth control in Chunseong Gun, Kangwon-do, Korea. For the research part, we analyze the impacts of the integrated program in comparison with the traditional and segmented programs on the following: (1) the selected indices of health status and fertility; (2) cost-effectiveness where costs are analyzed separately for each function and effectiveness are measured by the impacts on the above indices and the type and amount of services delivered; and finally (3) community participation which are measured by local community and government inputs as well as the coverage of the services provided under the program.

A national family planning program in Korea was initiated and organized by the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs in 1962. Its goal was to reduce population growth rate as a means of accelerating economic development. Although there have been many changes in the program since its inception, the goal still remains the same, as restated by the successive Five-Year Plans.

In the development of Korea's population programs, the first half of 1960s was called the "clinical era" as most programs were clinically oriented. During this period, there was no substructure under the Gun (county) for providing contraceptive services and information. Population programs played a passive role as clients had to come to program centers.

The second half of 1960s was called the "field era" as the program structure was expanded into Eup (town) and Myon (township) level. During

this period, family planning services were taken to clients in the field as field workers were posted in every Eup and mobile service clinics were organized in 1964 to take contraceptive services to remote areas.

The first half of 1970s may be called as the "expansion era" as existing programs were expanded in width and in depth. During this period, as family planning services were taken to the field in an increasing coverage and expanded in the scope of service, an ever increasing resources were expended for population programs.

The second half of the 1970s may be called the "reorientation era." It was during this era that there was a growing awareness of the shortcomings of doing more of the same things. Policies designed to increase contraceptive efficiency and coverage and those designed to improve public information were thought to have reached a point of rapidly diminishing return. Fresh approaches designed to alter fertility behavior were felt to be called for. New channels, such as taxation, housing priority, tuition incentive systems, were used to change fertility behavior patterns. Meaningful integration of different programs, however, made little progress and it still remains today in an experimental development stage.

The major experiements of integrating family planning programs with health programs were those conducted in Yongin Gun, Kyonggi Province under sponsorship of the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs and World Health Organization, and those carried out by Korea Health Development Institute before it was merged into Korean Institute for Population and Health. As for integrating family planning program with economic development program, in 1972, family planning program was included in the New Village Movement (NVM). The NVM was organized with the aim of enlisting local participants

in infrastructural development and income supplement programs. However, an effective integration of family planning program with the NVM was not achieved, with family planning given one percent in the total NVM activities achievement index for rural communities.

At the end of the expansion era, Korea's population program led to an emergence of numerous organizations involved in the programs. In recognition of the need to coordinate all population programs, Population Policy Coordinators Committee (PPCC) was established in 1976. The PPCC is a cabinet level population committee chaired by Deputy Prime Minister—cum-Minister of Economic Planning Board (EPB). This committee is an outgrowth of the Population Policy Section established in the EPB in 1974 to coordinate the ministry's activities in the population field. In addition, the Population Policy Secretariat (PPS) was established in the Korean Development Institute in 1976. The PPCC never met, however, after its first organizing meeting, and the PPS has not been overly active in recent years.

If population prgrams in Korea were to achieve a breakthrough in their total effectiveness, beyond organizational coordination and beyond family planning, the population programs should be integrated with health and development programs. In this sense, 1980s ought to be the integration era. The objective of this study is to play a part in ushering Korea into this new era by a successful implementation of an experimental action and research project of an integrated population program.

We offer an approach which integrates (1) basic personal health services, (2) health and sanitary education, and (3) the dissemination of information on contraceptive methods and the distribution of contraceptive devices. This approach has the following advantages. First, by

coordinating and integrating the three components of this program, we aim at improving the efficiency of the health care delivery system in terms of increasing the effectiveness or "output" for given resources spent or mininizing the resources spent for given effectiveness.

Second, the program aims at reducing the birth rate without directly attacking the popular concept of the ideal family size. This can be done by decreasing infant mortality rate, and thereby, reducing the need for any extra children to insure the desired number of surviving children. Third, it aims at improving the quality of population by increasing the investment in the health component of human capital. This will tend to raise the per capita income, thus, encouraging the changes in living conditions conducive to the desired change in the value system of people.

1.2 REVIEW OF LITERATURE AND GENERAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Family planning in Korea has often been cited as a success story. This is because it has received a main credit for the reduction of total fertility rate from 43.0 per 1,000 in 1960 to 32.1 in 1970 and then to 23.4 per thousand in 1980.² It should, however, be pointed out that during the same period, Korea has experienced a rapid economic growth and urbanization, which are known to have contributed to the decline in the birth rates of more developed countries in the past.

Today the family planning in Korea is at the crossroads. The biological approach in the 60's and more recently the media approach seem to have reached the stage of rapidly diminishing returns. A fresh look at the family planning and more broadly at the whole relationship between population, health and economic development is called for.

The basic premise of family planning is that population growth impedes economic growth by unfavorably affecting the resource-people ratio. Although the intuitively appealing notion that the population growth automatically lowers per capita income in less developed countries has lost ground, the unfavorable effects of population growth in LDC's continue to occupy much of the attention of those involved in family planning and economic development. The future role of family planning in Korea should be examined in the context of the complex relationship between population, health and economic development.

In this context, the concept of human capital provides a useful starting point.³ In the literature of economic growth and development, the explanation for the so-called residual factor, named for the difference between the total measured growth of inputs and of outputs, has increasingly been sought in the improvement in human capital or the quality of labor⁴ rather than in technical changes.⁵ Thus, we have seen a shift of emphasis from the investment in physical capital to the investment in human capital in the methodology of economic planning and a movement toward "generalized capital accumulation theory," which deals with all forms of capital.⁶

Concurrently, there has been a trend away from the population-resources ratio and dependency ratio approaches to the quality of population and inducement approach in dealing with the problem of population growth and economic development. Kunzets⁷ has presented a balanced look at the effects of population growth on economic development and Jorgenson⁸ discredited the contention that the most economy of LDC's is caught in a Malthusian trap. Note that the concept of optimum population is a static one based on the assumption of fixed resources and technology.

In appraising the effects of population growth on economic development, the critical areas to examine are its effects on the aggregate savings and labor productivity. Population growth could unfavorably affect both aggregate savings and labor productivity, the former by increasing dependency ratio and the latter by lowering capital-labor ratio. It should be pointed out, however, that it also could have a favorable effect on aggregate savings by increasing the propensity to save and that it could increase both aggregate savings and labor productivity by the so-caled replacement effect.

According to the life-cycle theory of saving, people save in young ages and dissave in old ages.⁹ Thus, the aggregate saving-income ratio will increase with population growth, if it results in a change in age composition of the population, making young savers proportionately more numerous than old dissavers. According to the theory of replacement effect, a rapid growth in population will result in a higher aggregate investment and labor productivity because the younger generation in general receives higher per capita investment in health and education.¹⁰

Even if we ignore the above mentioned favorable effects of population growth on economic development, the amount of investment needed to offset the unfavorable effects of population growth appears to be relatively small. An estimate has it that an increase of a little more than 1.5 percentage points in the fraction of GNP invested is needed to offset the effects of a rise of 1 percent point in the rate of population growth.¹¹

As for the increase in labor productivity needed to offset the unfavorable effect of population growth, few empirical studies have been done. For an economy with a capital-output ratio of 3 to 1, one source estimates that an increase of 4.6 percent in output per worker is required

to maintain per capita income, if life expectancy is to increase from 50 to 60 years with relatively constant fertility rate of 43 per 1,000.¹² Since the assumption of the fertility rate remaining constant at the rate of 43 per 1,000 is unrealistic for most LDC's, the increase in worker productivity required would be much less than 4.6 percent.

In addition to its effects on investment, there are two circumstances under which population growth would again exert a positive effect on per capital income. They are:

- The economy is operating in the increasing returns-to-scale stage.
- ii) Technical progress is accelerated by an increase in population, that is, knowledge is subject to increasing return to scale.There is no study on these points in Korea. It seems, however, reasonable to conject that there are certainly a few industries where there are increasing returns to scale both in production and knowledge.

Recently, development strategists have increasingly turned to non-economic factors. Attitudes and incentives have been emphasized as the essential ingredients of development. In this context, investment in health plays an important role. For example, it can be argued that a decline in the mortality rate will change the general outlook of life of a population which will, in turn readjust its consumption-savings and work-leisure patterns.

In fact, a healthy population could be considered as a candidate for <u>primum mobile</u> of economic development. For, the state of being healthy may well be an ingredient necessary to induce the attitudes, value systems and motivations which not only lower birth rates but also favor the emergence of the activities and personalities required for development.¹³ For those

who are "resource" oriented rather than "inducement" oriented, a healthy population could claim to spur economic growth because it is likely to include proportionately a greater number of individuals who are "growth agents," entrepreneurs, innovators, and disseminators of ideas.¹⁴

For the Korean economy during the sixties, it is not unrealistic to assume that investment in health contributed to her rapid rate of economic growth not only by decreasing debility and disability but also by decreasing mortality rate. Among various factors affecting the parameters of the relationsip between per capital income and population growth, observe the following features of Korean economy. (1) The development of an open dual economy with continuous migration of population from the rural-agricultural sector to the urban-industrial sector; (2) a relatively favorable output-labor ratio; (3) a rapidly expanding export sector; (4) an excellent literacy rate and a relatively high skill level of the labor force; (5) a drain on manpower by maintaining a 600,000 man armed forces. It is in this context that we are proposing an experimental program to improve human capital and (thereby) reduce fertility rate by offering an integrated health services and fertility control in a rural area.

The basic assumption behind this study is that the relationship between the population growth and economic development in Korea today is tenuous at best. However, it is postulated that the investment in human capital would accelerate the economic growth in Korea and would also have an effect of reducing fertility. And the cost effective way of improving human capital and (thereby) reducing fertility rate is a integrated program of delivering health and family planning services where integration is achieved in organization, function and administration.

1.3 HYPOTHESES FOR THE STUDY

There are three central hypotheses for this study. They are:

- A. Compared with non-integrated approach, an integrated program of delivering health and family planning services is more effective in improving the health status and in reducing fertility rates.
- B. Compared with non-integrated approach, an integrated program of delivering health and family planning services is more efficient in cost-effectiveness, that is, it involves less expenses for given output or effectiveness.
- C. Compared with non-integrated approach, an integrated program of delivering health and family planning services induces a greater degree of community participation by acting as a focal point merging diverse interests.

The conceptual model of analysis behind these hypotheses may be presented by the following diagram (see Figure 1.1).

There are several assumptions behind these hypotheses. The most important one is that activities for an improvement of health is functionally related to those for fertility control. This premise views that similar inputs can be used to produce a joint product called health and fertility control. Manpower qualified and materials and facilities suited to provide preventive and therapeutic health care are also qualified and suited to provide fertility control advices and devices with little or no additional training or modifications. This is a case where division of labor may lead to a lower productivity due to the indivisibility of production process.

The second major assumption is that the final outputs--health and fertility control---are interelated so that an absence of one without the

of Hypothesis
Model
Conceptual
1.1:
Figure

Inputs	Modes of Delivery	Providers and Recipients Relationship	Intermediate outputs	Fina/ Intermediate outputs
Manpower,	Integrated:	More contacts,	Better and cost-	Better health and
materials,	Multiple functions	interaction	effective	lower fertility
and	for each individual	community parti-	utilization of	for given resources
facilities		cipation and	resources for	used compared with
	0	provider involvement	preventive and	segmented mode of
(e.g. Labor	Segmented:	compared with	therapeutic care	delivery
and Capital)	Separate function	segmented mode	for health and	
	for each individual	of delivery	fertility control	
			compared with	
			segmented approach	

other may decrease the value or effectiveness of the other. For example, a decline in infant mortality through maternal and child health care enhances the effectiveness of the family planning services.¹⁵ Going one step further, it can be argued that a joint production of health and fertility control has a synergetic effect.

The third assumption is that an integrated approach tends to view all aspects of welfare of individual families as closely interrelated. Health, control over the size of family and economic welfare are interrelated and viewed as such by individual families. If health care and family planning services are offered together, families will be apt to appreciate more the value of such services leading to a greater participation of recipients and a greater sense of personal involvement by providers.

Finally, an assumption is made that an integrated approach lead to more efficient use of resources. If parallel agencies are set up to administer health care and family planning separately, this would lead to a duplication of manpower and facility to handle similar interrelated activities. Duplication tends to lead to a conflict of interests andwasteful rivalry.

1.4 <u>Methodology</u> and <u>Implementation</u>

1.4.1 Selection of the Experimental Site:

This study relies on the existing facility of Chunseong Gun Health Center located in Chunseong Gun, Kangwon Province. Under an agreement reached between the Seoul National University and the Provincial government of Kangwon Do, a health center was established at the above site in 1971.

The original purpose of the center was to serve as a field study site for public health and medical students. The center was designed to provide an opportunity for the trainees to learn at first hand the problems involved in public health and medical practice in rural areas. In addition, the staff of the center was to gather the data on the health indicators of the residents under the direction of the faculty of the school and offer the data to the provincial government. The faculty of the school is also offering consulting services to the provincial government.

Four Myons (townships) within Chunseong Gun (county) are selected as experimental sites because of their compatibility in several key variables and because they are separated from each other by Chuncheon si (city). Of these, Shindong Myon is chosen as the primary study or treatment area and the Pogok Myon the secondary study area. The other two are selected as the control areas. Table 1-1 shows the program inputs of each area. The study areas have an integrated program where "multipurpose worker" offers primary health care and family planning service concurrently.

1.4.2 Methods and Procedure:

Baseline survey of the households in the four Myons selected was conducted in the summer of 1980. Concurrently, multi-purpose workers were trained and assigned to Shindong and Pagok Myon. "Post-treatment" household survey was undertaken in the fall of 1981. The number of respondents and response rate in both surveys for each of the four Myons selected are shown in Table 1-2.

Data have been collected on "impact variables" and control variables. The impact variables are those variables which represent:

a) the intermediate output in health status and fertility control,
i.e., the utilization of health care for curative and/or
preventive purposes and that of family planning services;

Table 1.1: Program Inputs by Area

Study Area 1Shindong MyonB, C, DHigStudy Area 2Pogok MyonCLigControl Area 1Moonmak MyonAJControl Area 2Seo MyonA, BJ	Classification	Area	Program Input*		
Study Area 2Pogok MyonCLigControl Area 1Moonmak MyonAJControl Area 2Seo MyonA, BJ	Study Area 1	Shindong Myon	B, C, D	.4;	
Control Area 1Moonmak MyonAControl Area 2Seo MyonA, B	Study Area 2	Pogok Myon	С	Li	
Control Area 2 Seo Myon A, B J	Control Area 1	Moonmak Myon	А	<u>}</u>	
	Control Area 2	Seo Myon	А, В	J	

••

*A. Existing Government Program (Single Worker)

B. Health Insurance

C. Multipurpose Worker

D. Mothers' Club

Table	1.2:	Samp1e	Households	and	Universe
-------	------	--------	------------	-----	----------

Area	Total*			Selected		No. of Hds. Surveyed (%)		
	Pop.	No. of EDs	No. of Hds	No. of EDs	No. of Hds	1980	1981	
Shindong Myon	10,989	28	2,134	4	321	300 (93.5)	297 (99.0)*	
Pogok Myon	10,577	30	1,945	4	332	299 (90.1)	272 (90.7)	
Moonmak Myon	11,563	29	2,264	4	352	317 (90.1)	290 (96.7)	
Seo Myon	8,297	20	1,535	4	368	300 (81.5)	284 (96.7)	
Total	41,426	107	7,878	16	1,373	1,216 (88.6)) 1,143 (92.3)	
Total	41,426	107	7,878	16	1,373	1,216 (88.6)) 1,143 (92.3)	

ED: Enumeration District

Hd: Household

- Source: Statistical Yearbook, 1980, (census year) Economic Planning Board, Republic of Korea.
- * For the 1981 survey, the targeted number of households to be interviewed is 300 for each Myon.

- b) the use or non-use of contraceptives;
- c) the community participation variables; and
- d) cost-effectiveness variables such as expenses per service provided and patient's medical expenses per service.

Control variables are demographic and socioeconomic variables of respondents selected on the basis of preliminary analyses of national data, theories, previous studies, and <u>a priori</u> reasoning as those likely to influence the dependent variables significantly.

Basically, three types of data analyses have been undertaken. First, comparisons of key variables between Myons, i.e., the study areas vs. control areas are undertaken by frequency distribution diagrams for 1980 data and 1982 data separately. Then, an examination is made to see if and in what direction the inter-Myon differences in the key variables changed between 1980 and 1981.

Secondly, cross-tabulations of key variables by Myons are run to see if there exist statistically significant differences between Myons in the selected key variables. Then, the differences between Myons as compared between 1980 and 1981 to ascertain if and in what direction the differences changed between the two surveys.

Finally, multiple regression analyses have been conducted inserting various "impact variables" as the dependent variables and Myons and control variables as independent variables. Two sets of regressions are run—one with 1980 data and another with 1981 data. Myon variables are inserted as dummy variables to see if there exist statistically significant differences between Myons in their effect on the selected dependent variables after taking account of the effects on the dependent variables of control variables inserted.

Then, the b-coefficients of Myon dummy variables in the first set of regressions with the baseline data are compared with those in the second set of regressions with the post-treatment data. The comparisons are done by t tests to see if there exist statistically significant differences between the two sets of b-coefficients. If the results show that such differences exist, the hypotheses about the impacts of integrated program on the selected dependent variables are supported.

1.5 Summary of Findings and Policy Implications

Three major hypotheses are tested in this study. They are:

I. Compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a better health and fertility control;

II. Compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a more active community participation; and

III. Compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a more efficient program performance. ^(F) Hypothesis I is supported with a varying degree of statistical confidence level where the variation depends on the surrogate variable chosen to represent health and fertility and also on the sample population selected. Hyopthesis II is supported with a statistically satisfactory level of confidence. However, only one variable is used to represent community participation. Hypothesis III is supported so far as the available data indicate. However, the paucity of data preclude any conclusion with a statistically satisfactory level of confidence.

As mentioned before, due to the shortness of the period during which different program inputs are expected to exert influence on the performance variables, health status is represented by the utilization of health services and fertility control by whether family planning is practiced or not. Multiple regression analysis show that the hypothesis I on health is unequivocally supported, when the use of health service is represented by health workers' home visits. Whereas Shindong Myon (the high integration area) had less visits than all other three Myons in 1980, in 1981, the reverse was the case. The difference between Myons in the inter-year changes are largely statistically significant.

When the number of visits to health facilities is used to represent the intensity of the utilization of health care, the hypothesis (I) on health is refuted for the visits for curative care. Shindong Myon residents reduced their visits to health facilities for curative care between the survey years, whereas the residents of Seo Myon (the control area I) and Pogok Myon (the light integration area) increased the visits. Accordingly, multiple regression analyses show that, after taking account of the effects of the control variables, the differences between Myons in the inter-year changes are statistically significant for Shindong vs. these two Myons, but insignificant for Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon (the control area II).

÷

This is due to the fact that Shindong Myon residents shifted their reliance on health facilities from curative visits to preventive visits between 1980 and 1981. Whereas Shindong Myon residents significantly reduced the curative visits in comparison with others between 1980 and 1981, they increased the preventive visits more than the residents of the three other Myons. To the extent to which the selected control variables did their jobs, integrated program proved to have an effect of inducing the target population to favor preventive care over curative care.

The result of multivariate analyses also supports the hypothesis (I) on fertility control. When fertility control is represented by the acceptance rate of family planning, the data analyses show that the acceptance rate increased among Shindong Hyon residents statistically significantly more than among the residents of Pogok Myon and those of Moonmak Myon between 1980 and 1981. The inter-Myon difference in the inter-year changes is not statistically significant between Shindong Myon and Seo Myon.

The result of multiple regression analysis generally supports the hypothesis II on community participation when it is represented by the attendance rate at mothers' club meetings. Established in 1974, the club has been a focal point of community activities about health, sanitation, and family planning. The data analysis show that, between 1980 and 1981, Shindong Myon housewives increased their attendance rate more than those residing in the three other Myons. The difference between Myons in the inter-year changes are statistically significant for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon and Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon, but insignificant for Shindong Myon vs Pogok Myon.

The hypothesis III on performance efficiency is supported by a comparative analysis of data on the cost per service. The cost per service figures are obtained by dividing health centers' monthly budget by the number of visits to the centers and that of health workers' home visits. The cost per service for Shindong Myon declined much more than for other Myons between the survey years. This is because the volume of service increased for Shindong Myon a great deal more than for other Myons. Thus, to the extent to which Shindong Myon's volume increase is due to the integrated program and to the extent to which a greater utilization of the program services indicate the program efficiency, the hypothesis III on program efficiency is supported. It is to be noted here that, due to data limitations, no statistical tests are conducted.

In summary, all the three central hypotheses are generally supported except when the use of health care is represented by the visits to health facilties for curative purpose. A question which remains to be answered is whether it is reasonable and legitimate to represent health status and fertility control by the use of health care and the acceptance rate of

family planning respectively. Related to this question is that a greater use of health care by the residents of the high integration area may simply indicate a greater amount of attention given to them than others, without significantly improving health status of the residents of the study area. This is a question which could be answered with further studies. It is noted here, however, that so-called "Hawthorne Effect"¹⁶ may not be important here because integration involves a different mode of delivery and not the delivery of a greater volume of service.

In the course of testing the above hypotheses, it has become clear that there is significant interdependence among the three performance variables selected, namely, program performance—health and fertility, community involvment and program efficiency. For example, the data analysis conducted for this study shows that community involvement, as represented by the attendance rate at mothers' club meetings, improve program performance.

On the other hand, related to all three indices of performance used in this study is the commitment to integration by policy makers, staff and community members. Commitment by these people improve the program performance and vice versa. Integrated population program is at an experimental stage in Korea. Further experiments under different settings would demonstrate the merit of integrated approach to policy makers, staff and community members. Such demonstrations would improve the commitment to integration by these people, and this would, in turn, improve the program performance. Thus, this process would bring about a cumulative chain reaction leading to a nationwide acceptance of integrated approach.

In the context of Korea's national population program, policy implications gathered from this study are as follows. Commitment to

integration by policy makers at all levels is essential. Second, a formal training program and a licensing procedure for the staff to be employed in integrated program should be established at a national level by the Binistry of Health and Social Affairs. Third, an evaluation and monitoring system should be instituted to discover the weakness and strength of each integrated program so that an improvement can continually be made to fit each program to the need of each community. Finally, to enhance community involvement from the start of integrated program, the field staff should be recruited from the community members as a matter of program guideline.

An appropriate organization through which the initial implementation of the above recommendations can be made, is the New Village Movement (NVE). The NVM is a national organization established to enlist local participation in infrastructures development and income supplement programs. In 1972, family planning program was included in the NVM. However, an effective integration of family planning program with the NVM activities has not been achieved.

The new administration proclaimed the establishment of a democrative welfare society as a national goal for 1980s. With a greater priority given to social and welfare aspects of development, health and family programs are given a greater emphasis in the total NNM activities. This time of expanding the role of health and family planning programs in rural development is opportune time to work toward an introduction of integrated program on a nationwide basis. It is hoped that this study plays a part in the process of persuading policy makers of the merit of the integrated approach and, therefore, it plays a part in initiating integrated program nationwide in 1980s.
Footnotes

¹ The "clinical era" and "field era" are phrases borrowed from existing publications. The "expansion era" and "re-orientation era" are our own phrases.

Information presented in this Section 1.1, Chapter I is based on the materials presented in the following publications: Sawong Hong, <u>Population Status Report: Korea</u> (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 1978); Planned Parenthood Federation of Korea, <u>Ten-Year History of Family Planning in Korea</u> (Seoul, 1975); and Taek-Il Kim, et al., <u>The Korean National Family Planning Program</u> (New York: The Population Council, 1972).

- ²National Bureau of Statistics, Economic Planning Board, Republic of Korea, 1981.
- ³The birth of the human capital concept can be traced to T.W. Schults, "Capital Formation by Education", <u>The J. of Political Economy</u>, Vol. 68, No. 6 (Dec. 1960), pp. 571-83.
- ⁴D.W. Jorgenson and Z. Griliches, "The Explanation of Productivity Change", <u>The Review of Economic Studi</u>es, Vol. 34 (3), No. 99, (July 1972)
- ⁵See R. M. Solow, "Technical Change and the Aggregate Production Function" <u>Review of Economics and Statistics</u>, Vol. 39, No. 3, pp. 312-20.

⁶H.G. Johnson, "Toward a Generalized Capital Accumulation Approach to Economic Development", <u>Residual Factors and Economic Growth</u>, Paris, O.E.C.D., 1964, pp. 219-25.

- ⁷Simon Kuznets, "Population and Economic Growth", in <u>Proceedings of</u> <u>American Philosophical Society</u>, Vol. III, No. 3, June 1967, pp. 170-93. For his quantitative analysis, see Simon Kuznets, "Quantitative Aspects of the Economic Growth of Nations: 1. <u>Economic Development and Cultural</u> <u>Change</u>, Vol. V., 1 (Oct. 1956) For the theoretical presentation of his view, see Simon Kuznets, "Population Change and Aggregate Output" in <u>Demographic and Economic Change in Developed Countries</u>, op. cit.
- ⁸D.W. Johnson, "Testing Alternative Theories of the Development of a Dual Economy", in I. Adelman and E. Thorbecks, eds., <u>The Theory and Design of</u> <u>Economic Development</u>, Baltimore, Johns Hopkins Press, 1966.
- ⁹ Franco Modigliani and Richard Brumberg, "Utility Analysis and the Consumption Function: An Interpretation of Cross-Section Date", in Kenneth K. Krihara, Ed., Post Keynesian Economic, (Rutgers University, 1954), pp. 388-436. Also see James Tobin, Life Cycle Saving and Balanced Growth", in William Fellner, et al., <u>Ten Economic Studies in Tradition of</u> <u>Irving Fisher</u>, John Wiley, 1967.
- ¹⁰Harvey Leibernstein, "The Impact of Population Growth on Economic Welfare-Nontraditional Elements", in <u>Rapid Population Growth</u>, John Hopkins Press, 1971.

¹¹Paul M. Sommers and Daniel S. Suits, "A Cross-Section Model of Economic Growth", <u>The Review of Economic and Statistics</u>, Vol. III, No. 2, (May 1971), pp. 121-28. The equation used for this estimate is r-G (GCF/GNP, dn/N) which expresses the rate of growth (r) of GNP per capita as a function of the GNP invested and the rate of population growth. N-67 countries in 1966.

¹²P.E. Enterline and W.H. Stewart, "Health Program Requirements to Offset on Level of Living", <u>American Journal of Public Health</u>, Vol. 52, No. 3, 1962, pp. 401-09. See Table 3, p. 406. This estimate is based on John H. Power's full-employment growth model: g.c. = s.p

where g is the annual percentage increment to the labor supply, c is the optimum capital-labor ratio, s is the ratio of net national product at full employment and p is average labor productivity. <u>Economic Journal</u> Vol. LXVIII, No. 269, March 1958, pp. 34-50.

- ¹³See Albert O. Hirshman, <u>The Strategy of Economic Development</u>, New Haven, Yale University Press, 1958, Chapter 1.
- ¹⁴Carl E. Taylor and Marie-Francoise Hall, "Health, Population, and Economic Development, <u>Science</u>, Vol. 157 (August 11, 1967), pp. 651-57.

¹⁵See Howard C. Taylor and Bernard Berelson, "Comprehensive Family Planning Based on Maternal/Child Health Services: A Feasibility Study for the World," <u>Studies in Family Planning</u> 2, 2 (February 1971); and Johnston and Meyers, "Nutrition, Health and Population," and Bruce F. Johnston, "Food, Health and Population in Development," <u>Journal of Economic Literature</u> 15, 3 (September 1977), pp. 879-907.

Estimates of the elasticity of completed fertility with respect to the infant mortality rate range from .18 to .40; although this broad a range points up the measurement problems, the figures serve to suggest that a reduction in the infant mortality rate would have had a significant impact on fertility. Estimates presented in William P. McGreevey, <u>The Policy Relevance of Recent Social Research on Fertility</u>, Occasional Monograph Series, no. 2, An ICP Staff Report, Interdisciplinary Communications Program, Smithsonian Institution, Washington, D.C., 1974, pp. 30-31.

¹⁶United Nations' Funds for Population Activities, <u>On Integration of Family</u> <u>Planning with Rural Development</u>, Policy Development Studies, No. 1, UNFPA, New York, 1979.

CHAPTER II: COUNTRY REVIEW

2.1 Population and Socioeconomic Development Review and Rationales for the Selection of Control Variables

Korea's economic development and social progress during the last two decades have been called remarkable and well-known. Since 1960, Korea has developed from one of the poorest countries to a middle income, newly industrializing country. Between 1960 and 1980, real per capita income increased four times and the manufacturing sector's share of GNP increased from 11 to 34 percent, as the agricultural sector's share declined from 40 to 18 percent. Impressive social gains have also been made. Health, education, housing and public services have improved significantly.

This section describes the historical trends in population and socioeconomic characteristics, most of which have been selected as the control variables. The demographic and socioeconomic characteristics presented are (1) urbanization, (2) education, (3) industrialization, and (4) investment in health. Preliminary analyses of the relationship between these characteristics and fertility are also presented to justify the selection of them as the control variables for this study.

2.1.1 Urbanization

Two remarkable features of demographic development in South Korea in recent years have been rapid urbanization and declining fertility rate. Like other developing countries, the Republic of Korea witnessed a rapidly increasing rate of population growth after the World War II as her mortality rate declined while her birth rate remained stable. (See Table 2-1). The intercensal growth rate of population reached the peak at 2.7 percent per annum during the five-year period after the Korean War between 1955 and 1960. The mid-year estimates of 1979 show that the recent rate of Table 2-1. Population and Intercensal Growth Rates: All Korea, 1925-44, and Republic of Korea, 1945-79

Year	Population	Intercensal Growth Rate (Per Cent)		
All Korea				
1925 (October 1)	19,020,030	1.4		
1930 (October 1)	20,438,108	1.7		
1935 (October 1)	22,208,102	1.2		
1940 (October 1)	23,547,465	1.4		
1944 (May 1)	25,120,174			
Republic of Korea				
1949 (May 1)	20,166,756	1.2		
1955 (September 1)	21,502,386	2.7 ^a		
1960´(December 1)	24,954,290	2.5 ^a		
1966 (October 1)	29,159,640	2.1 ^a		
1970 (October 1)	31,438,768	2.1 ^b		
1975 (October 1)	34,678,972	2.1 ^b		
1979 (October 1)	37,605,000			

- a) Preliminary estimates by Lee Jay Cho, (Source: Republic of Korea, Economic Planning Board(1971: 37, Table 10). and "Korean Population: Recent Trends and Future Prospects." Paper presented at a meeting of the International Liaison Committee for Research on Korea, Daejeon, Republic of Korea, 1972: 13. Table 1.
- b) Republic of Korea, Economic Planning Board, mid-year estimates.

population growth in the Republic of Korea has been about 2.1 percent per annum.

The Republic of Korea government and other agencies, domestic and international, launched an active campaign to reduce the birth rate in early 1960's. According to estimates based on censuses, crude birth rate declined from 42.9 per 1,000 population in 1960 to 29.0 per 1,000 in 1970. The 1970 birth rate is, thus, about 67.6 percent of the 1960 birth rate (see Table 2-2). The preliminary result of 1980 census shows that it declined further to 23.4.

Censuses taken since 1955 show that population of metropolitan areas—Seoul and Busan—increased by about 256 percent between 1955 and 1975 (see Table 2-3). There is also a considerable movement into other cities (Shi's) recording about a 181 percent increase in population of Shi's between 1955 and 1975. Whereas the rate of migration into Shi's accelerated, however, that into metropolitan areas declined in the recent years. The intercensal increase in population between 1970 and 1975 was about 49 percent for Shi's compared with that of about 24 percent for metropolitan areas. The results of rural-urban migration of such magnitude is that the rural population of Korea in 1975 is a bare majority of about 52 percent contrasted with the fact that over 75 percent of people lived in rural areas in 1955.

The demographic importance of rural-urban migration of such magnitude may be found in its possible effect on fertility rate. Table 2-4 shows the difference in total fertility rate between women in rural area and those in urban area from 1960 to 1975. Although fertility rate declined for women in both rural and urban areas, the rural-urban difference in fertility remains essentially unchanged.

Crude birt	n rate
Estimated	Based on Registration ^a
45.4 ^b	37.5
45.3 ^b	30.9
43.5 ^b	32.6
41.0 ^b	35.3
u	23.9
43.3 ⁰	31.2
42.9 ^C 35.8 ^C	42.6
$33.7^{\rm C}_{\rm c}$ $30.0^{\rm c}$	
29.0 ^C 24.3 ^d 23.4 ^d	
	Crude birth Estimated 45.4 ^b 45.3 ^b 43.5 ^b 41.0 ^b u 43.3 ^c 42.9 ^c 35.8 ^c 33.7 ^c 30.0 ^c 29.0 ^c 24.3 ^d 23.4 ^d

Table 2-2. Crude Birth Rates: All Korea, 1924-44, and Republic of Korea, 1945-79

u) Unavailable

- a) See Republic of Korea, Economic Planning Board (1970:30, Tables 2-5).
- b) Estimates by Taebin Im, "Population Projections for the Republic of Korea, 1960-80." Monthly Statistics of Korea (Seoul), 5(11-12):5-47, (1963:12, Table 4;15., Table 7).
- c) Preliminary estimates by Cho, op. cit., 1972:13 Table 1. Preliminary estimates based on a new procedure using incomplete birth registration statistics and the census.
- d) 1975 Census and 1980 Census preliminary result, Republic of Korea, Economic Planning Board.

	Hetropolitan Areas (Seoul, Pusan)		Hetropolitan Areas Cities (Seoul, Pusan)		Rural	Areas	Total	
	pop. (1,000 persons)	distri- bution (%)	pop.	listri- bution	boh'	distri- bution	pop.	distri- bution
1955	2,624	12.2	2,657	12.3	16,221	75.5	21,502	100.0
1960	3,609	14.4	3,592	14.4	17,753	71.2	24,954	100.0
1966	5,219	17.9	4,761	16.3	19,456	65.8	29,436	100.0
1970	7,673	23.8	5,191	15.1	19,377	60.0	32,241	100.0
1975	9,491	26.9	7,515	21.3	18,275	51.8	35,281	100.0

Table 2-3 Population Growth Rate in and Distribution among Metropolitan Areas (Seoul, Pusan), Cities, and Rural Areas.

	Pc	opulation Grow	/th Rates (%)		
	19 <u>55-1960</u>	1960-1966	1966-1970	1970-1975	1955-1975
Metropolitan Areas (Seoul, Pusan)	+ 37.5	+ 44.6	+ 47.0	+ 23.7	+ 255.7
Cities	+ 35.2	+ 32.5	+ 9.0	+ 44.8	+ 181.3
Rural Areas	+ 9.2	+ 8.0	- 0.4	- 5.7	+ 10.1

Source: E.P.B., Population and Housing Census Report 1955, '60,'66,'70,'75

Table 2-4 Fertility Rate in Cities and Rural Areas (1960-1975)

	Total	Cities	Rural Areas
1960	6.13	5.37	6.76
1962	5.51	4.79	6.19
1964	4.89	4.16	5.58
1965	4.82	3.34	5.55
1968	4.46	3.38	5.14
1970	3.94	3.15	4.42
1975	3.24	2.73	4.62

Source: 1. 1960-1970: Cho, Lee-Jay, "The Demographic Situation in the Republic of Korea", Internation Laison Committee for Research on Korea, 1973.

2. E.P.B., Population and Housing Census Report, 1975.

A cross-tabulation of Shi-gun data show that those areas with a higher percent of farming households in the total households have a higher rate of fertility rate and out-migration (see Table 2-5). Nationwide data, therefore, support the selection of farming vs. non-farming household as a control variable for this study.

2.1.2 Education

In 1960s, the Republic of Korea has been known to have a higher level of educational attainment compared with countries with similar socioeconomic indices. The level of education improved further in 1970s. Table 2-6 shows that the biggest improvement is in the rate of advancement from primary to middle school. In 1965, 54 percent of those who graduated from primary schools (1st to 6th grade) went on to enroll in middle schools (7th to 9th grade). The figure increased to 90 percent in 1978. In 1978, there is almost a universal enrollment in primary schools at 97.6 percent of children of primary school age (6 to 11 years).

The result of preliminary analysis, as shown in Table 2-7, indicates that Shi-Guns with a higher rate of advancement from middle to high schools have a lower rate of fertility. This relationship supports the selection of the educational level of the head and wife of a household as a control variable for this study.

2.1.3 Industrialization and Per Capita Income

Since industrialization is usually accompanied by sectorial change in the share of GNP, we present data on this in Table 2-8. The data show that the growth rate of the manufacturing and mining sector increased from 9.2 in 1960 to 18.2 percent in 1970, whereas that of the agriculture, forest and fishery sector witnessed a decline from 0.1 to minus 0.9 during the

Migra- tion	percentof Farming			Fertil	ity Rat	<u>e*</u>			Total
Effi- ciency+	House- holds	0.2 and less	0.2	0.6	1.0 - 1.4	1.4	1.8 - 2.2	2.2 and over	
0.6	10 and less 10 - 30 30 - 50 50 - 70 70 and over	4	4	3					12 2 1 1
0.9	10 and less 10 - 30 30 - 50 50 - 70 70 and over			5 4 4	1 2 2 4				6 6 6 4
1.2 - 1.5	<u>10 and less</u> 10 - <u>30</u> 30 - 50 50 - 70 70 and over		······	1	$\begin{array}{c}1\\10\\4\end{array}$	1 3 6			3 13 10
1.5 - 1.8	<u>10 and less</u> <u>10 - 30</u> <u>30 - 50</u> <u>50 - 70</u> 70 and over				1 4 1	1 7 5	<u>1</u> <u>3</u>		2 12 9
1.8 - 2.1	10 and less 10 - 30 30 - 50 50 - 70 70 and over					28	<u>3</u> 6		5 15
2.1 and over	10 and less 10 - 30 30 - 50 50 - 70 70 and over					2 1	<u>1</u> 5	3	39
To	tal	4	5	18	33	36	19	4	119

Table 2-5 Relationship Between per cent of Farming Households, Migration Efficiency and Fertility Rate (1978) Unit: City and County

*) Fertility Rate = No. of births ('78) No. of women aged 19-45

+ Migration Efficiency = out-migrants in-migrants

	Primary School Enrollment Rate	Middle School Advancement Rate	High School Advancement Rate
1965	95.1	54.3	69.1 ·
1970	97.0	66.0	70.1
1975	97.2	77.2	74.7
1978	5.	89.7	79.3

Table 2-6 Primary School Enrollment Rate And Middle and High School Advancement Rate

Source: Ministry of Education, Education Statistical Yearbook, (1979)

Table 2-7	Relationship	Between	Educational	Level	and	Fertility	(1978)
-----------	--------------	---------	-------------	-------	-----	-----------	--------

No. of High sch. students		Fertility Rate*						
No. of Middle sch. students	0.2 and under	0.2 - 0.6	0.6 - 1.0	1.0 - 1.4	1.4 - 1.8	1.8 - 2.2	2.2 and Over	Total
0.2 and under					1	2	5	8
0.2 - 0.3				5	5	11	1	22
0.30.4		1	1	5	21	7		35
0.4 - 0.5			1	21	8		1	31
0.5 - 0.6			2	13	4			19
0.6 - 0.7		1	13	3				17
0.7 - 0.8	2	4	5	1				12
0.8 - 0.9	3	10	2					15
0.9 - 1.0	7	5	2					14
Total	12	21	26	48	39	20	7	173

 $x^{2} = 367.25 > x^{2}(0.99,48) = 74.61$

*) Fertility Rate = $\frac{No. of births ('78)}{No. of women aged 19-45}$ x 10

same ten-year period. With a slow down in economic growth, the growth rate of "industrial sector" declined to 10.2 percent in 1979. Nevertheless, this sector now accounts for 28.5 percent of the GNP compared with 12.1 percent in 1960.

Industrialization is reflected in the changes in the per capita GNP. In developing countries, it is usually recognized that as the per capita GNP increases, the fertility rate and population growth rate decline. This observation turns out to be correct for Korea. Table 2-9 shows that as the per capita GNP in 1975 U.S. dollars increased from \$241 in 1961 to \$776 in 1978, the population growth rate declined from 2.5 to 2.1 percent.

A cross-tabulation of the per capita income as measured by the per capita tax revenue and fertility show a negative correlation, which is proved to be statistically significant by Chi-square test (see Table 2-10). This gives a justification for selecting household income as a control variable for this study.

2.1.4 Investment in Health Facilities and Personnel

Trends in the availability of health facilities and personnel are discussed below because the utilization of health service is one of the impact variables chosen for this study. The relationship between the above health variable and fertility is also discussed here because the child-survival hypothesis has often been cited as a rationale for population integration program. The child-survival hypothesis argues that infant mortality is negatively related to acceptance and practice of fertility-limiting behavior.¹

The national data indicate that the availability and utilization of health services improved steadily. As Table 2-11 shows, the greatest

Table 2-8 Production by Industry

	1960	1965	1970	1972	1975	1979	
Agriculture, forest & fishery		t trat of demonstrate					
Growth Rate (%)	0.1	- 1.9	- 0.9	1.7	5.3	5.2	
Per Cent of GNP	41.3	39.4	28.0	28.3	24.9	20.6	
Mining & Manufacturing							
Growth Rate (%)	9.2	18.7	18.2	15.0	12.6	10.2	
Per Cent of GNP	12.1	15.5	22.8	24.4	28.0	28.5	

Source: Bank of Korea, Statistical Year Book, 1979

Table 2-9 Per Capita GNP in 1975 Constant U.S. dollars -- 1961-1978

Per Capita year GNP	Quantity (\$)	Annual Rate of Increase (%)
1961	241	
1965	.280	3.9
1970	408	8.3
1975	574	7.1
1978	776	10.6

Source: E.P.B., (Economic Planning Board,) Korean Statistical Yearbook, 1979.

Relation	ship Be	etween 1	Income a	und Fert	tility R	ate
			Ferti	lity Ra	te*	
0.2 and under	0. 2 - 0.6	0.6 - 1.0	1.0 - 1.4	1.4 - 1.8	1.8 - 2.2	2.2
					1 .	
		1	1	6	13	
	1	A - diriyle - I men enymeting - a	8	23	4	

	Fertility Rate*							
Per C apit a tax re venu e	0.2 and under	0. 2 - 0.6	0.6 - 1.0	1.0 - 1.4	1.4 - 1.8	1.8 - 2.2	2.2 and over	Total
2,000 and under] .	5	6
2,000 - 4,000			1	1	6	13	1	2 2
4,000 - 6,000		1	A subscripts of sumscriptions of an analysis of the sumscription of the sumscription of the sumscriptio	8	23	4		36
6,000 - 8,000			3	21	8	2		34
8,000 - 10,000		2	3	14	2			21
10,000 - 12,000		2	6	4			1	13
12,000 - 14,000			10					10
14,000 - 16,000	1	5	1					7
16,000 - 18,000	1	9	2					12
18,000 - 20,000	4	1			•			5
20,000 and over	6	1						7
Total	12	21	26	48	39	20	7	173

$$x^2 = 505.34 > x^2(0.99,60) = 88.38$$

Fertility Rate = <u>No. of birth ('78)</u> x 10 No. of women aged 19-45

improvement has been achieved for physicians. In 1961, there were about three thousand persons per medical doctor. In 1978, the figure was sixteen hundred. The availability of hospital beds per population also increased from 0.34 beds per 1,000 in 1961 to 0.78 in 1978. During the same period, the infant mortality rate declined from 72 per thousand in 1966 to 37 in 1978-79 (see Table 2-12). Life expectancy has also improved from 51.1 years for males and 53.7 years for females in 1955-60 to 63 and 69 years in 1978-79.

A preliminary analysis shows a negative correlaion between the availability of doctors and fertility rate. Table 2-13 indicates that this relationship as reflected in cross-tabulation is statistically significant. This by no means proves the validity of the child-survival theory. The relationship between the availability of physicians and infant mortality rate is loose at best. However, the relationship revealed gives a rationale for selecting the utilization of health care as one of the impact variables.

2.2 Review of Korea's Population Programs

Population policy and programs in Korea have two major objectives. One is to make geographical distribution of population less concentrated in cities. Another is to decrease fertility. Only population policies and programs formulated to lower fertility are discussed here.²

As in other countries, policies designated to decrease fertility in Korea may be divided into two broad categories: (1) those designed to encourage couples to desire smaller families; and (2) those designed to facilitate couples' realization of that desire. In the first category, altering the social and economic environment that fosters son preference

	No. of Medical Facilíties*	No. of Hospital Beds per 100,000*	Utilization Rate*	person per physician**	
1961	210	34.9	52.8	3,034	
1970	245	51.3	58.4	1,773	
1975	178	60.2	64.5	1,801	
1978	301	77.9	62.2	1,614	

Table 2-11 Trend in Health Facilities and Personnel: 1961-1978

* including General Hospitals: Hospitals, and special Hospitals
** including Herb doctors (Oriental Dr.)

Source: Ministry of Health and Social Affairs, <u>Statistical Yearbook</u>, 1979.

Table 2-12 Life Expectancy and Infant Nortality 1955-1979

Life expectancy at birth	1955-1960	1966	1971	1978-79
Male ^{a)}	51.1	59.7	61.9	63 ^{d)}
Female ^{b)}	53.7	64.1	66.8	69 ^d)
Infant mortality rate	-	0.072 ^{c)}	0.045 ^{c)}	0.037 ^{d)}

a&b) E.P.B., "Country Monograph," 1973

c) D. Lee, "An Estimation of Infant Mortality Rate in Korea," mimeographed, 1974.

d) Estimates based on E.P.B. made life table.

No. of	Fertility*							
^{мD /} рор. 100,000	0.2 and under	0.2-0.6	0.6-1.0	1.0-1.4	1.4-1.8	1.8-2.2	2.2 and over	Total
· 5 and under						2	4	6
5-9			1	1	4	13	2	21
9-13			1	4	19	3		27
13-17		1	2	8	12	2		25
17-21		1	4	19	2		1	27
21-25				14	1			15
25-29			2	2				4
29-33		1	4		1			6
33-37		1	10					11
37-41		3	2					5
41-45		8						8
45-49	1							1
49-54	3	5						8
54 and over	8	1						9
Total	12	21	26	48	39	20	7	173

Table 2-13 Relationship Between the Number of Physicians and Fertility (1978)

$$x^2 = 508.62 - x^2(0.95,78) \div 99.63$$

was a major policy objective in the 1970s. In the second category, the most cost-effective method of increasing contraceptive efficiency was the goal of those engaged in family planning programs.

2.2.1. Policies to Alter Son Preference

Various studies have shown that Korean families strongly prefer a son over a daughter.³ A son is viewed as an investment good in that he is expected to provide old age security for his parents; a daughter is viewed as a consumption good. Son preference is considered by researchers to be a major cause of large family size in Korea.⁴ To reduce fertility, therefore, it is necessary to reduce the economic value of a son relative to that of a daughter. One way to accomplish this is to provide an alternative means of old age security through pension programs.¹⁴

For some years now, the government has been preparing to implement a comprehensive social security and old age pension system. The 1973 National Welfare Pension Law requires all employers to provide a retirement pension for employees over 60 years of age. So far, however, only civil servants, military personnel, and public school teachers have had pension programs. Others have continued to receive severance pay only, with the amount determined by the length of employment.

Enforcement of the 1973 pension law has been postponed because researchers and policymakers fear it will have adverse effects on the economy. Financing a large-scale pension scheme would increase the unit cost of labor and, thus, accelerate the rate of inflation. The increase in labor cost would not only cut into Korea's comparative advantage in international trade but also lower the output elasticity of employment. A

slower growth rate in employment is considered highly undesirable at Korea's current stage of economic and social development.

A second method for reducing son preference is to reduce the gap between males' and females' potential earnings.¹⁵ Higher earnings for women also may reduce fertility by raising the opportunity cost of children.¹⁶ More broadly, and as an objective in its own right, officials in government are studying various measures to enhance the status of women. There is an urgent need for legal reform that would enable a woman to inherit her family's assets. There is a long way to go before equal economic opportunity for women becomes a reality.

The Korean government has also attempted to reduce son preference directly through its "information-education-communications" program. The well-known slogan of the program is "raise well no more than two children regardless of their sex." The message has been disseminated sporadically with varying degrees of intensity. It is our opinion that the program has not significantly altered son preference among Korean families.

2.2.2 Incentive System to Lower Fertility

Various incentive systems have been adopted to change behavior and to increase contraceptive adoption. For many years, incentives for contraceptive adoption have been provided because available foreign funds often come earmarked for that purpose—that is, for the free distribution of contraceptives and information about how to use them.

Among incentives to change behavior, lower tax rates for smaller families, higher priority for public housing for smaller families, and cash payment for acceptance of a vasectomy or tubal ligation have been adopted. For example, in December 1976, the income tax law was amended to limit the maximum allowable personal exemption for children to two. A higher priority for public housing was given to families with no more than two children, one of the parents sterilized, and the female head of household less than 40 years of age. Before 1977, acceptors of a vasectomy or tubal ligation were compensated for the days' income lost because of the operation. From 1977 to 1978, the government, mostly through the Korean Institute for Family Planning, offered 6,000 won for acceptance of a vasectomy and 15,000 won (about US\$30) for that of tubal ligation. These monies were paid to the acceptors, and the operation costs were paid directly by the government to the doctors who performed the operation. The success of this incentive system is reflected in the jump in the number of sterilizations from 81,000 in 1976 to 235,000 and 232,000 in 1977 and 1978.⁸

We believe that these incentive systems are workable and, therefore, can fruitfully be used for fertility reduction in the future. On the other hand, the free or subsidized distribution of contraceptives has become less and less effective in lowering fertility in Korea. The price elasticity of demand for contraceptives is believed to be low, and free distribution as a means of expanding knowledge and acceptability of fertility control appeared by the early 1970s to be reaching rapidly diminishing returns.

2.2.3 Health Policy for Population Programs

As mentioned before, the child-survival hypothesis, supported by past research, suggests that a decrease in mortality rates in general and in infant mortality rates in particular has a fertility depressing effect.⁹ Although policies designed to lower child mortality are pursued in their own right, reduction of the positive effects of son preference on fertility is an acknowledged secondary objective of health policy of Korea. However,

there has never been meaningful integration of health programs with population programs in a large scale.

The health policy of Korea has followed a three-pronged strategy: to improve the supply and quality of health services by increasing health manpower and facilities; to improve access to health services by introducing health insurance programs; and to improve sanitary conditions, with emphasis on improving the water supply. Among the accomplishments of this policy are the following: between 1970 and 1978 the number of physicians increased by about 34 percent, that of nurses by 103 percent. As a result, the population-physician ratio was reduced from 1,773 in 1970 to 1,614 in 1978, and the population-nurse ratio from 1.795 to 459 (see Table 2-11). A compulsory health insurance program for firms with more than 500 employees, civil servants, and school teachers has recently been implemented more rigorously. By 1981, one-fifth of the population is expected to be covered by this program.

It is impossible to isolate the impact of this health policy on the infant mortality rate;¹⁰ however, judging from available data, Korea's achievement in reducing her infant mortality rate is impressive. The data on infant mortality are scarce and less reliable than other demographic data published by the Korean government. Nevertheless, they indicate a remarkable decline in the infant mortality rate, from about 72 per thousand in 1966 to about 37 in 1978-79 (see Table 2-12). Estimates of the elasticity of completed fertility with respect to the infant mortality rate range from .18 to .40; although this broad a range points up the measurement problems, the figures serve to suggest that the 50 percent reduction in the infant mortality rate between 1966 and 1978-79 would have had a significant impact on fertility.¹¹ This indicates that a national

policy integrating health and population programs would have had more impacts not only on health but also fertility than the record shows.

Since World War II until 1961, there has been little or no interest on the part of the Korean government in family planning.¹² Even the importation of contraceptive devices had been planned in the fifties. The turning point came in 1961 when the Supreme Council for National Reconstruction initiated government's participation in family planning. In the following year, the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs (MOHSA) organized a national family planning program. The goal of the national population control program was to reduce the population growth rate as a means of maximizing economic development. This goal, as restated in the successive Five-Year Plans, still remains the major objective of governmental programs of population control.

As the population control programs expanded, the number of government and non-government agencies involved also increased. For example, the implementation of national programs at local level has been made through the Ministry of Home Affairs (MOHA). Population education has been conducted through the Ministry of Education (MOE). In carrying out incentive and disencentive programs for population policies, Economic Planning Board (EPB) is responsible for formulation of tax exemption system, but MOHA is responsible for implementing it. In assigning public housing priorities for population policies, the Ministry of Construction (MOC) and MOHA are both involved. Table 2-14 shows the historical

Korea
ч.
Program
Control
Fertility

Policy Measure	Programs	Sponsoring Agencies
Family Planning Program	Contraceptive services (1962) Information and Education (1962)	MOHSA
Strengthening of Family Planning Program	Expansion of delivery system (1971) Legalization of Induced Abortion (1973) Adoption of Menstural Regulation (1974)	MOHSA
Population Education	Formal School Education (1974) Nonformal Adult Education (1977)	MOE
Institutionalization of Incentive and Disincentive Programs	Income tax exemption for the small family (1976) Public housing priorities to the sterilized family (1977)	MOHSA
Source: Sawon Hong, <u>Population</u> MOHSA: Minsitry of Health and S	<u>Status Report: Korea</u> , (Seoul: Korea Development ocial Affairs.	Institute, 1978), p. 46.

Ministry of Education.

MOE:

development of population growth control programs and their sponsoring agencies.

The first half of the 1960s was called as the "clinical era"¹³ as most of the population programs were clinically oriented. During this period, there was no substructure under the gun (county) for providing contraceptive services and information. Population programs played a passive role as clients have to come to program centers.

The second half of the 1960s was called the "field era" as the program structure was expanded into Eup (town) and Myon (township) levels. During this period, family planning services were taken to clients in the field as field workers were posted in every Eup and Myon and mobile service clinics were organized in 1964 to take contraceptive services to remote areas.

The first half of the 1970s may be called as the "expansion era" as existing programs were expanded in width and in depth. During this period, as family planning services were taken to the field in an increasing coverage and expanded in the scope of service, an ever increasing resorce was expended for various population programs. It was at the initial stage of the expansion era that government officials and major donor agencies began to express an interest in and recognize a need for systemative and effective program management.

Responding to this interest and need, the National Family Planning Center was established in 1970 to perform evaluation, research and training functions. In the following year, 1971, the Center was reorganized into the Korean Institute for Family Planning (KIFP). In 1981, KIFP merged with Korean Health Development Institute (KHDI) to become the Korean Institute for Population and Health (KIPH). KIPH combines the twin functions of research evaluation and training in family planing with those in health.

The emergence of the KIPH is significant in that it comes at the end of an era, the second half of the 1970s, which may be called the "reorientation era". It was during this era that there was a growing awareness of the shortcomings of doing more of the same things. Policies designed to increase contraceptive efficiency and coverage and those designed to improved public information were thought to have reached a point of rapidly diminishing return. Fresh approaches desinged to alter fertility behavior were felt to be called for. New channels, such as taxation, housing priority, tuition incentive systems, were used to change fertility behavior pattern. Meaningful integration of different programs, however, made little programs and it still remains today in an experimental development stage.

The major experiments of integrating family planning programs with health programs were those conducted in Yongingun, Kyonggi Province under sponsorship of the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs (MOHSA) and the World Health Organization (WHO) and those carried out by KHDI before its merger with KIFP in the last years of the 1970s. As for integrating family planning program with economic development programs, in 1972, family planning program was included in the New Village Movements (NVM). The NVM was organized with the aim of enlisting local participation in infrastructural development and income supplement programs. Effective integration of family planning program with NVM was not achieved, with family planning given one percent in the total NVM activities achievement index for rural communities.

Figure 2-1 presents the organizational structure of family planning systems as existed in 1978. Since this chart was made, the role of foreign and international donors diminished a great deal. This organization chart is inadequate because those programs which go beyond family planning are left out. Policies designed to alter fertility behavior through economic incentive and disincentive systems and those designed to be implemented in coordination with programs other than fertility control programs are not included in the organizational structure as perceived in Figure 2-1.

There were so many organizations involved in the population and other related programs in the "reorientation era" that need to coordinate all population activities and to develop a comprehensive national population policy was widely recognized. In response to this recognized need, Population Policy Coordinators Committee (PPCC) was established in 1976. The PPCC is a cabinet level population committee chaired by Deputy Prime Minister—cum-Minister of EPB. This committee is an outgrowth of the Population Policy Section established in the EPB in 1974 to coordinate the ministry's activities in the population field. In addition, to ensure that demographic variables and population Policy Secretariate (PPS) was established in the Korean Development Institute (KDI) in 1976. Figure 2-2 illustrates the functional relationship between the PPCC, PPS and other ministries.

The PPCC never met, however, after its first organizing meeting, and its role fell de facto to the Population Policy Secretariat (PPS) of the Korean Development Institute (KDI). Since the KDI is the research arm of the EPB and plays a significant role in the economic planning of the Republic of Korea, locating the PPS in the KDI is a logical development.

Figure 2-1 Organization Chart of Family Planning System



Reproduced from Sawon Hong, <u>Population Status Report</u>: Korea (Seoul: Korea Development Institute, 1978), p. 50.



Organizational Chart for Implementing Korea's Population Policy



Reproduced from Sawon Hong, "Population Policy Formulation in Korea," paper presented at the Summer Seminar on Population, at Korea Development Institute, July 14-15, 1977, Seoul, Korea. So far, however, it is difficult to discern a substantial increase in the use of demographic parameters in development planning attributable to the contribution of the PPS. In fact, the PPS has not been overly active in recent years. We believe that coordination has not been carried out to the extent to bring about a meaningful result because there emerged no consensus as to the method of coordination and the objectives of coordination. Beyond coordination, what is needed in the 1980s is an emerging consensus on the need for integration based on a recognition of the nature of interrelationship between various programs inputs in population and development and that of the relationship between their outcomes. Such consensus would make 1980s "integration era" during which fertility control programs are integrated with health programs, and population-health programs are integrated with development programs in policy formulation and implementation.

Footnotes

- ¹UNFPA, "A Report on UNFPA/EWPI Technical Working Group Meeting on Integration of Family Planning with Rural Development," East-West Center, Honolulu, Hawaii, 15-18 February 1978. UNFPA, New York, 1979.
- ²Much of the following materials presented in 2.2 is from the principal investigator's article, D.W. Nam and K.-K. Ro, "Population Research and Population Policy in Korea in the 1970s," <u>Population and Development Review</u>, Vol. 7, No. 4, December 1981.
- ³For a recent and comprehensive study, see Sung Jin Lee and Jung-Oh Kim, <u>The Value of Children: A Cross-National Study-Korea</u>. (Honolulu: East-West Population Institute, East-West Center and Seoul: Korean Institute for Research in the Behavioral Sciences, 1979).
- ⁴Research on son preference as a determinant of fertility is summarized in William P. McGreevey, <u>The Policy Relevance of Recent Social Research on</u> <u>Fertility</u>. Occasional Monograph Series, no. 2, An ICP Staff Report, Interdisciplinary Communications Program, Smithsonian Institute, Washington, D.C., 1974, pp. 30-31.
- ⁵The most recent series of studies on the relationship between fertility and pension have been conducted by the Population Studies Center of the University of Michigan. Its research reports include: Barbara Entwisel, and C.R. Winegarden, "Fertility and Pension Interrelationship in Developing Countries: Econometric Evidence," Research Report no. 8109. April 1981; and Barbara Entwisle, and K.A. Bollen, "Pension Programs in LDCs: An Indirect Means of Fertility Reduction?" Research Report no. 81-8, April 1981.
- ⁶For a summary of studies on fertility-female employment relationship, see <u>McGreevey, cited</u> in note 4, pp. 20-23.
- ⁷For studies of the relationship between fertility and women's earnings, see McGreevey, cited in note 4.
- ⁸In Dorothy Nortman and Ellen Hofstatter, <u>Population and Family Planning</u> <u>Programs</u>, 10th ed. (New York: The Population Council, 1980).
- ⁹Examples: Heer's analysis of data on 41 countries for the 1950s indicated a significant correlation (r = +0.7) between fertility and infant mortality, and a partial correlation coefficient of +0.37 (significant at .05 level). See David M. Heer, "Economic development and fertility." <u>Demography</u>, 3, no. 2 (1966): 423-444.
- 10For statistical studies of the factors affecting mortality, see Richard Auster et al., "The Production of Health: An Explanatory Study," <u>The</u> <u>Journal of Human Resources</u>, 4 (Fall 1969): 412-36; and Mary L. Larmore, "An Inquiry into an Econometric Production Function for Health in the U.S.," unpublished Ph.D. Dissertation, Northwestern University, 1967.

¹¹Data are from McGreevey, cited in note 4.

¹²Data for the materials presented in Section 2.3, Chapter II have mostly been collected from the following publications:

Sawon Hong, <u>Population Status Report:</u> <u>Korea</u>, Korea Development Institute, (Seoul, 1978);

Taek-Il Kim, et al., <u>The Korean National Family Planning Program</u>. (New York: The Population Council, 1972);

Planned Parenthood Federation of Korea, <u>Ten-Year History of Family</u> <u>Planning in Korea</u>. (Seoul: 1975); and

Dae Woo Han, <u>An Outline and Evaluation of the Family Planning Program</u>. (Seoul: Korean Institute for Family Planning, 1977).

¹³The "clinical" and "field" era are phrases borrowed from previous publications and the expansion and reorientation era are my own phrases.

2-29

APPENDIX TO CHAPTER II SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

INTEGRATED PROGRAM

OF

BASIC HEALTH SERVICES

AND

FERTILITY CONTROL



Interview

Date:	,. <u>.</u>	
Starting T	ime:	
Completion	Time:	
Attempt:	lst, 2nd,	3rd, or 4th
	(circl	le one)

Institute of Health & Environmental Sciences School of Public Health, Seoul National University

	CONTENTS	
		Questionnaire Page Numbers
1.	Demographic and Socio-economic Status	1
11.	Health	3
III	Fertility	5
IV.	Knowledge of Contraception and Usage	8
۷.	Mortality and Morbidity	10

.

1. Demographic and Socio-economic status.

1. Characteristics of family member

ғет11у пищсег	Nane	Relation- ship	Sex	Date of Cirth	Age(yrs)	Education	Cccupa- ticn	Religion	Marital status	Romarks
01										
02										
03										
04										
05										
06										-
07										
08										
09										
10		-								
11										
12										
13										
14										
15										

1. Unit is hold , 2. If the date of official registration is not correct, take true one. 3. Classification of educational levels; preschool, illiteracy, able to read korean, attending elementary sch., elementary sch. dropout, attending middle sch., middle school dropout, attending high sch., attending college, college dropout, college graduate. 4. Classification of eccupation is based on Korean standard of occupation 5. Classification of sarital status; single, marries_divorced, widow or widower 6. Remarks: Leavel for long time, marriage, death, and others necessary 7. Old parents and losg term employees are regarded as family members.

Health (for housewife only) ΙΙ. 1. During the last month, how many visits have you made to medical facilities (hospital, private clinic, health center)? (1) 0(5) 4 times (2) 1 time (6) 5 times (3) 2 times (7) more than 5 times (4) 3 times 2. If one or more, where did you visit? (1) Private clinic or hospital (2) Provincial or city hospital (3) University hospital (4) Doctor's visit (5) Dental clinic (6) Pharmacy (7) Health center (8) Herb clinic or herb pharmacy 3. Then, what was the purpose of your visiting? (1) Family planning (2) MCH (3) Vaccination (4) Tuberculosis control (5) Environmental sanitation (6) Olinical treatment (7) Chronic disease 4. How many times received visity from health workers? (5) 4 times (1) 0(6) 5 times (2) 1 time (7) more than 5 times (3) 2 times (4) 3 times

- 5. If one or more, what was the purpose of health worker visity?
 - (1) Family planning
 - (2) MCH
 - (3) Vaccination
 - (4) Tuberculosis control
 - (5) Environmental sanitation
 - (6) Clinical treatment
 - (7) Chronic disease
- 6. If when you become ill, where would you go first?
 - (1) Private clinic or hospital
 - (2) Provincial or city hospital
 - (3) University hospital
 - (4) Doctor's visit
 - (5) Dental clinic
 - (6) Pharmacy
 - (7) Health center
 - (8) Herb clinic or herb pharmacy
- 7. Are you covered by some type of Medical Insurance?
 - (1) Yes
 - (2) No ----- go to Q. 9
- 8. What do you think about medical insurance fee?
 - (1) Expensive
 - (2) Reasonatle
 - (3) Inexpensive
 - (4) D.K.
- 9. Why didn't you join any kind of medical insurance?
 - (1) Not available
 - (2) Fee is too high
 - (3) Do not know about any medical insurance
 - (4) Do not believe is the value of medical insurance
- 10. During the last month, how many times visit a medical facility for consultation or health examination about health for your family before they become ill?
 - (1) o
 (4) 3 times

 (2) 1 time
 (5) 4 times

 (3) 2 times
 (6) 5 and more
- III. Fertility: (15-44 yrs. eligible women only)
- We want to get a complete record of all babies you have actually given birth to during your life time. First of all, do you have any children of your own now living with you ?



3. How many of your children have died?

No

_____pers.

4.	How many times have you had spontaneous abortions?	
		_times
5.	How many times have you had induced abortions?	
		times
6.	Are you pregnant now?	
	Yes No D.K.	
7.	Would you prefer to have a boy or girl?	
	1) Boy	
	2) Girl	
	3) Either	
	4) Other (specify:)
8.	You have hadpregnancies, Is that right? (sum of 1 to 5)	
	1) Yes	
	2) No (Probe and correct as needed)	

Prog. order	<u>Pregnant</u> yr. month	End of mostation month day	Result of prognancy	Sex	Twin	Date of death yr/mon./day
						- -
						· · ·

٠

1V. Knowledge of contraception and usage (15-44 yrs. eligible women only)

1. Now I want to talk about a somewhat different topic, As you know, there are many ways that a couple can delay the next pregnancy or avoid it altogether.

Have you ever used these contraceptive method?



2. What was your contraceptive method when you used one at the first time? Method:

(Choose code of contraceptive methods)

3. When did you use contraceptive at the first time?



4.	When did	you have the first contraceptive method?
5.	How many time?	habies did you have when you used the contraceptive first
	Roy :	pers.
	Girl:	pers.
	Both:	pers.
6.	Have you used con 1) No 2) Yes	ever experienced accidental pregnancies while you traceptive methods?
7.	Who is u 1) No (g 2) Yes	<pre>sing the contraceptive method you or your husland? o to q. 8) (1) IUD (2) OP (3) Condem (4) Vasectomy (5) Tululigation (6) Other</pre>
8.	If your 1) Not n 2) Don't 3) Bocau 4) Not i 5) Other	answer to Q. 7 is no, why don't you use contraceptive method? ecessary know how to use se of side-effects nterested s (specify)
9.	If your methods 1) Yes 2) Cnly 3) No 4) Not n 5) N/A (answer to Q. 7 is no, do you want to use contraceptive in the future? When necessary economy in use)

- V. Mortality and morbidity
- 1. Mortality :
 - 1) Have you experienced a death in your family during the last year (1979. 1. 1.-12. 31)? (1) No (Stop here) (2) Yes pers.
 - 2) I want to ask you somewhat about them

Family No.	Date of death	Date of birth of the death	Place of death*	Cause of death**
	1979	19		
	1979	19		
	1979	19		
	1979	19		

- * Place of death: 1. Own home
 - 2. Clinic or hospital
 - 3. Others (where:

)

- **Cause of death: 1. If he/she was diagnosed by physician, write down the name of the discase as diagnosed.
 - 2. If not, write down the major symptoms and signs of the disease or the name of disease before hc/she died.

Mor	bidi	ty	1
-----	------	----	---

- 1) During the last week, did you or a member of your family become ill?
 - (1) No (Stop here)
 - (2) Yes
- 2) If so, how many persons are ill? (write family No.)



3) I want to ask you about each member of family who was ill during the last week. (*please* write individual morbidity record respectively)

Individual morbidity record

Family No.

	Treatment: 1. Yes 2	• No			
Time of onset : 1700		Results of treatment		Date of :	
Name of disease General symptoms (depend on disease	1.	1. Cure 2. In-treatment 5. De 3. Improvement 6. D.	o effect K.	1. Cure 2. Death	•••
progress/ Why not seek treatment	1. Economic reason 4. No facilities available 5. No 5. Ot	it till the need a rises effects are expected hers(specify	3.	Nct severe e seek a treat	nçugh to ment)
orso to sedif	No. of treatment days	Price of care	iio. of he	d days	
ist treatment:					
grd treatment: grd_treatment:					
Total :					
C: Private clinic or 1: Provincial or city 2: University hospita	hcspital (Ambulatory) hospital (Ambulatory) 1 (Ambulatory)				
3: Doctor's visit 4. Private clinic of 5. Provincial or city 6. University hospita	hospital (In-patient) • hospital (In-patient) 1 (In-patient)				
7: Dental clinic 8: Pharmacy 6: Horth center					y
Y: Rerb clinic or her Y: Folk medicine or s	cb pharmacy superstitution				

1

;

1: Clinical Examinations: (Put (+) if sign present, () if sign absent) 1. Hair: 8. Skin : () Follicular keratitis () Dyspigmentation () Thin sparace arm, back, leg () Easily pluckable () Pellagramatous dermatitis () Dyspigmentation, diffuse 2. Eye : local () Pale conjunction 9. Muscle wasting : () Bitot spot () Arma () Keratomalacia () Buttock () Infection () Leg 3. Face : 10. Log : () Moon face () Bilateral edema () Nasolabial seborrhea () Bow leg 4. Lip: () Epiphyseal enlargement () Angular stomatitis, active () Nickety rosary () Angular stomatitis, scar () Knee jerk () Cheilosis () Ankle jerk 5. Tongue : 11. Mental condition : () Papillary atrophy () Apathetic () Glossitis () Irritable () Magenta tongue () Mentatally deficient 6. Gums : 12. Teeth : () Bleeding () No. of carries () Swollen red papillae () No. of missing 7. Thyroid: 13. Other finding (specify) () Thriod enlargement

II. Physical Measurements:

.

9

1.	Height :		_inch (_cm)	
2.	Weight :		_LB. (kg)	
3.	Head gir	th :	inch (<u></u>	cm)	
4.	Chest gin	rth :	inch	(cm)	
5.	Upper art	n girth : Flexion Extention Difference	f	inch (inch (inch (_Cm) _cm) _cm)
6.	Sitting H	neight :		inc (_cm)
7.	Relative	weight :				
8.	Relative	chest girt	h :			
9.	Relative	sitting he	ight :			
10.	Roher ind	dex :				·····
11.	Kaup ind	ех :				
12.	Various I	Nutritional	Indicies			
	Vervaeck Pelidisi Oppenhei Kondo ind Messerli	<pre>index :</pre>				

. .

,

III. Measurement of Skin-fold Thickness:

 1. Triceps : ______mm

 2. Abdomen : ______mm

 3. Lumbar : ______mm

 4. Subscapular : ______mm

IV. Hematology, Urinalysis and Others:

1. Blood tests

1)	Hemglobin :	-		gm%
2)	Hematocrit	:	 9	6

3) MCHC : _____

4) Blood biochemistry:

- (1) Serum protein _______ (m%
- (2) Serum albumin _____gm%
- (3) A/G ratio _____
- (4) Serum iron _____Ug%
- (5) Serum TIBC _____Ug%
- (6) Blood smear ______(7) Other ______

2. Urinalysis

- 1) Urinary Urea-N : _____gm/L
- 2) Urinary creatinine-N : _____gm/L
- 3) Urea-N/ Creatinine-N :_____

3. Stool Test

- 1) EPG(Ascariasis) _____ 2) Egg count(Hook worm) _____ 3) Culture(Hook worm) _____
- 4. IW. CS Skin tests _____
- 5. Indirect X-ray

6. Others _____

CHAPTER III: OVERVIEW OF PROGRAM UNDER STUDY

3.1 Description of the Project Under Study

The integrated population project was introduced into Choonseng Gun and incorporated into Chonseong Gun Community health Service Program of Seoul National University. In order to describe the integrated population project under study, Section 3.1.1 presents the historical background of Choonseong Gun Community Health Program. In Section 3.1.2, population and geographical characteristics of the experimental sites chosen are presented. Administrative structure of the project is discussed in Chapter V through the aid of Figure 5-1: Organizational Interaction Chart Among Government, Seoul National University and Community for the High Integration Area.

3.1.1 Historical Background of Choonseong Gun Community Health Program

Chunseong Gun Community Health Service Program was established by the School of Public Health, Seoul National University in collaboration with the Kangwon Provincial Government in 1972. The process of determining mutual goals of these two organizations for the program is described below.

In May 1971, the school and the health authority of the Kangwon Province verbally agreed that a demonstration and training station should be set up in the Chunseong Gun area. As the plan progressed, the following questions were raised. What should be the size of the base population to be served? How comprehensive should the services be? What are the prospects for community participation? As the best site for providing answers to these questions, after numerous site visits were made, Singondong Myon, one of the eight Myons of Chunseong Gun, was selected. The school, then, purchased a building in the area to serve as the dormitory for the faculty, students, and trainees during field training. Remodeling was completed in July 1972.

The first student training program was conducted for six weeks, beginning July 16, 1972. Fifty-two graduate students participated under the supervision of faculty members. All basic information necessary for community diagnosis was obtained from the eastern half of Shindong Myon. The data was then recorded in each family chart, and analyzed in a usable form as part of the training program.

The community health service station opened on October 1, 1972 in a building provided by the Gun government. The station carried out the duties of a regular substation of the Gun Health Department as well as participating in the demonstration, training, and research activities for both the School of Public Health and the local health authorities. The major activities assigned to the field station were (1) to provide public health services including maternal and child health, environmental sanitation, family planning, tuberculosis and communicable disease control, recording of vital statistics, public health nursing service, school health services and health education, and (2) also to actively participate in and assist the faculty with field training and research activities in the area.

The station was staffed with three health workers dispatched from the school including one sanitarian and two public health nurses; three from the local government, including one midwife and two nurse aides; and one U.S. Peace Corp volunteer working in tuberculosis control. A few additional workers from the medical insurance program were later added to the original staff. On January 6, 1973, an official contract was signed by the heads of the two collaborating organizations, the School of Public

Health, Seoul National University and Kangwon Provincial Government. Although this service was forthcoming, a strong desire to have its own medical care system was eventually voiced by both the community members and the school staff. Both groups finally reached the conclusion that a medical insurance system should be adopted. The school team consistently supported the philosophy that the system should stand on a firm basis of community participation and financial independence.

In March of 1973, in order to explore the feasibility of a medical insurance system suitable for the local area, the school began gathering materials on insurance systems in Korea and foreign countries, surveyed the community opinion, consulted with appropriate officials of the central government, and conducted a pilot medical clinic service. An application, was submitted to the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs. Following several revisions of the articles, official approval was granted on June 16, 1974.

Funds of operating the program came from three sources: membership premium, and assistance from the central and local governments.

Policy decisions concerning the health insurance plan were made by the Board of Community Health Insurance composed of community leaders and governmental officials. The school staff played an advisory and consultant role. The Provincial Hospital became the referral hospital for the health insurance program.

Opening of a regular medical clinic in the station on June 18, 1974 signaled the completion of the total setting for the community health service program.

In Singond Myon, the insurance program initially recruited 675 families (3,900 people), which increased to 802 families (4,755 people) by

the end of 1974. The insurance program expands to include three other Myons of Chunseong Gun in 1975.

Chunseong Gun Community Health Service Program had three initial objectives: (1) to provide field training for students, (2) to provide a demonstration model for comprehensive health services, and (3) to explore answers to specific health problems through research. These goals remained unchanged until 1980.

In 1980, the integrated population program introduced into Shindong Myon and Pagok Myon. The main feature of this program is an introduction of multi-purpose workers who are trained to provide family planning servie and primary health care concurrently on an integrated basis. An emphasis is placed on giving information and services for family planning and primary health as a joint, interrelated service, even if only family planning service or primary health care is sought by the residents.

3.1.2: Population and Geographic Characteristics of Experimental Sites

Figures 3-1 to 3-6 and Tables 3-1 to 3-4 present geographical and demographic characteristics of four Myons selected-Shindong Myon (Study Area I, high integration area), Seo Myon (Control Area I), Pagok Myon (Study Area II, light integration area) and Moonmak Myon (Control Area II). These figures and tables are self-explanatory. A few observations are, however, made for the readers' attention.

Pagok Myon stands out as a highly populated and non-farming area compared with the three other Myons (see Tables 3-1 and 3-2). Population density of Pagok Myon-247 per km^2 -- is more than four times that of Seo Myon and about twice as much as those of Moonmak Myon and Shindong Myon. Compared with other Myons, Pagok Myon is a compact village and only 37









percent of its residents are engaged in farming, whereas, in other Myons, 63 to 93 percent are farmers. Thus, cultivated land per household is about the same for all four Myongs.

Population pyramids presented in Figures 3-2 through 3-6 reveal marked difference between the experimental sites and the rest of Korea. Whereas the age composition of all Korea (Figure 3-2) shows the typical shape of a growing population bulging at the under 20 age group. All four Myons chosen for the project reveal a narrow "waist line" at the 25-29 age group and, to a less extent, at the 30-34 age group. The narrowness of the "waist line" at the 25-29 age group is most prominent for Seo Myon and Shindong Myon. The overall impression one gets from these population pyramids is that young adults are leaving the experimental sites for big cities en masse.

Compared with the rest of the country, all the four Myons have relatively large young age dependency ratios (the number of people under 15 years old per 100 people aged 15-64) and relatively small old age dependency ratios (65 plus per 100 15-64 age group). (See Table 3-3.) This must be due to the exodus of young people from the Myons to Seoul and other big cities. Among the four Myons, the most compact village, Pagok Myon, has the smallest young and old age dependency ratio.

As for the relative size of target population for family planning, Table 3-4 iidicates that population program should be directed mainly toward women under 25 years old. In Pagok Myon, more than a half of fecund women are under 25 age group. Even in Moonmak Myon, which has the older age group, 38 percent of eligible women are under 25. In fact, the proportion of under 25 years old fecund women would have been higher if the 45-49 years old women are not included among the eligible people.



Fig. 3-3 Population Composition by Sex and Age Group, Shindong Myon









.

Area
γd
Characteristics
Regional
ole 3-1

Items Myon S				
	hindong Myon	Seo Myon	Pogok Myon	Мооптак Муоп
Topology Se	emi-mountainous, r Piedmont	Mountainous	Plane	Semi-mountainous
Plains * E	elatively Wide, roded Plain	Wide	Wide	Narrow
Transportation Co	onvenient	Inconvenient	Relatively Inconvenient	Inconvenient
Village Type Si vi	imi-compact vi illage	Non-compact village	Compact village	Non-Compact village
Farm House- Hold Rate %	74.7	92.5	37.2	63.2
Rice-Paddy Ratio	35.0	35.0	62.0	45.9
Population Density (per Km ²)	130.8	59.7	247.0	106.3

١

Myon
γd
Land
Cultivated
anđ
Population
Farm
4 0
Comparison
-7
e G
[deT

Myon	Farm House-Hold Rate (%)	Cultivated Land per Farm House-Hold (ha)	Population Density(per Km ²)	Rice-Paddy Ratio (%)	Vegetable Land Ratio (%)
Shindong	74.7	1.2	130.8	35.0	26.1
Seo	92.5	1.2	59.7	35.0	26.1
Pogok	37.2	1.1	247.0	62.0	36.2
Moonmak	63.2	1.5	106.3	45.9	29.9

Ratio
Dependency
and
Composition
Population
Table 3-3

	Populati	on Compos	ition Ratio			Dependency Rat	io
Area	0 - 14	15 - 64	65 -	Old Age Index	Total	Young Population	Old Population
Shindong	40.5	54.9	4.6	11.4	82.2	73.8	8.4
Seo	39.8	55.4	4.8	12.1	80.5	71.8	8.7
Pogok	33.8	62.7	3.5	10.4	59.5	53.9	5.6
Moonmak	39.3	55.0	5.7	14.5	81.9	71.5	10.4

Myon
γd
Women
Fecund
of
Composition
Age
3-4
Table

					Age Co	mpositi	(\$) uo		
поүк	NO. Fec		15-19	20-24	25-29	30-34	35-39	40-44	45-49
Shindong Myon	2408	(100.0)	24.1	14.7	9.4	12.6	15.4	12.6	11.2
royMoos	1839	(100.0)	24.0	14.7	9.2	11.6	14.3	14.2	12.0
Pogok Myon	2584	(100.0)	32.3	23.3	13.2	9.8	7.8	7.1	6.5
Моопша к Муоп	2517	(100.0)	22.8	15.3	9.4	12.6	16.2	12.3	11.4

3.2 The Integrated Population Program under the study in Relation to National Population Program

There are numerous governmental and non-governmental agencies involved in the national population programs in Korea. At the ministerial level, the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs (MOHSA) and the Ministry of Home Affairs (HOHA) are directly involved in providing family planning services. The Ministry of Education (MOE) is responsible for population education. The Ministry of Finance (MOF) is involved in the incentive and disincentive systems for population programs. The Ministry of Construction (MOC) is involved in housing priority assignment for population incentive system. The Economic Planning Board (EPB) is involved indirectly in all phases of the national population programs because it oversees the allocation of all government budget. Figure 3-7 below presents an organizational chart of national population programs.

The integrated population program under this study is administratively linked with the national population program through MOHSA, MOHA and MOE. Seoul National University belongs to MOE and Kanwon-do Provincial government participates in the program in cooperation and under the direction of MOHSA and MOHA.

The integrated approach to population program in Korea is still in an experimental stage. Therefore, the part which this integrated population project plays in the national population program is that of a pioneer project.

As mentioned in Chapter II, a major program of integrating fammily planning service with health care was carried out on an experimental basis in Yongin Jun, Kyonggi Province under the sponsorship of MOHSA and the World Health Organization. Korea Health Development Institute, before it

3-1	17
-----	----

Figure 3-7: Organizational Chart of National Population Program

and the second sec		Economic	Planni	ng Boar	d	non-governmental
Agencies	MOHSA	MOHA	MOF	MOE	MOC	domestic foreign
Program areas		local g	overnme	nt		central and local government
Contraceptive services	*	*				*
Induced abortion	*	*				*
Information, education and communication	*	*				*
Population education				*		*
Tax incentive and disincentive system			*			
Public housing priorities					*	
Tuition incentive and disincentive program				*		

Note: MOHSA: Ministry of Health and Social Affairs MOHA: Ministry of Home Affairs MOF: Ministry of Finance MOE: Ministry of Education MOC: Ministry of Construction merged into the Korean Institute for Popuation and Health, conducted integrated population health experiments in three sites in 1978. Our project under this study will provide additional information on and new insight into the desirability of population-health integration program for national population policy makers.

Chapter IV: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE STUDY

4.1 Questionnaire Making

In making questionnaires for this study, researchers held meetings to decide on (1) what information is needed, (2) which is the best way to get the needed information, and (3) how to organize the questionnaires to facilitate the coding of information obtained. It is agreed that, at the minimum, information on the following are needed: (1) impact variables, (2) integration variables, and (3) control variables.

Additions and subtractions of questions are decided on the basis of the importance of information sought and the marginal costs or marginal savings of adding or subtracting a question. Marginal costs include the likelihood of a declining cooperation of interviewees due to the length of questionnaire, which might result in a decline of response rate and that in the accuracy of information obtained.

A pretest was made of 32 households, 8 from each of the four Myon selected. Two researchers visited these households together. The pretest serves several purposes. One is to revise and finalize the questionnaires. Second, it enables one to evaluate and ascertain the wisdom of sample selection. Third, it helps one to formulate the strategy for interview. Finally, it provides an input needed for training interviewers.

At the end of the pretest, a meeting was held to finalize the questionnaires. Table 4-1 summarizes the process and time table of the baseline survey conducted in the summer of 1980. For the post-treatment conducted in the summer of 1981, a similar process was undertaken except that the same questionnaires were used and there was no pretest. A copy of the finalized questionnaire is shown in the appendix to this chapter.



Table 4-1: Time Table and Process of Data Collection (Baseline Survey)

4.2 Sample Selection

As mentioned in the introductory chapter, Choonseong-gun (county) is selected as the experimental site because it is the location of Choonseong-gun Health Center operated by the School of Public Health, Seoul National University. Two Myons (twonships) in the Choonseong-gun are selected as study areas and two other as control areas.

Shindong-Myon is selected as the high integration area and Pagok Myon as the light integration areas (see Table 1-1). This is because Shindong-Myon has a mothers' club office and health insurance program in addition to multi-purpose health workers. Pagok Myon has multi-purpose workers only. Mothers' club meetings serve as conduits for community participation in health, fertility control and economic activities of each Myon. Health insurance program is introduced in some parts of rural area as an experiment by the central government and the expenses are subidized by it. Moommak Myon is selected as control area I because it has only government programs. At present, local governments under the direction of the central government conduct three separate programs administered by separate agencies. They are tuberculosis eradication program, family planning program (mainly distribution of contraceptives), and maternal and child health program. Seo Myon which has a health insurance program, in addition to the government programs mentioned above, is chosen as control area II.

A 100 percent sampling of the households residing in four Enumeration Districts (ED) from each of the four Myons selected was undertaken. Four EDs from each Myon constitute about 13 to 20 percent samples because each of the four Myons selected contains from 20 to 30 EDs within its boundary (see Table 1-2). The Enumeration Districts as designated by the 1980

Census consitute the smallest and most homogeneous communities, which are similar to census tracks in the U.S.A. Based on the preliminary results of 1980 Census, an effort has been made to select four EDs from each Myon so that the diversity and similarity of residents of each Myon may be represented by the four EDs. The second criterion of the ED selection is made on the basis of accessibility as determined by the experience of health workers there.

This sample selection method is tied to our strategy of interview and data collection. By concentrating on one ED at one time, we are able to use a saturation tactic. Several interviewers went to one ED at the same time and tried to interview the ladies of all households within an ED. This strategy is thought to improve cooperation and response rate because the housewives know that all their neighbors are also being interviewed. Moreover, by concetrating on an ED at a time, we are able to go to a specific ED at at time on a day when the ladies of household, are likely to be home. This method has also facilitated the follow-up interviews of those who had been absent.

4.3 The Surveys

Both the base-line and post-treatment surveys were conducted by 16 local college students during their summer vacations of 1980 and 1981. They were students of sociology at Gangwon National University and nursing students at Chuncheon Nursing College, who were selected and trained for interviewing after the pre-test was conducted in 1980. These local students are chosen because they are the most educated and motivated people available for the surveys and also because, being students, they would

lessen any suspicions the interviewees might have about the nature and objectives of the surveys.

As shown in Table 1-2 of Chapter I, on the average, these students succeeded in getting about 89 percent response rate for the base-line survey and about 82 percent for the post-treatment survey. Figures 4-1 and 4-2 show the number and location of residents interviewed during the two surveys.

Since summertime is a busy season for farmers, the iterviewers had to schedule their times of visits to coincide with the times of day when housewives prepare meals to take to the field. This is the reason, as mentioned before, why the strategy of concentrating on one ED at a time was chosen. There were additional problems for the second survey. As shown in Figures 4-1 and 4-2, the response rate for the second survey was less than that for the first survey because some of the households interviewed during the base-line survey moved and also because some of the student interviewers were not the same students who had conducted interviews during the base-line survey.

4.4: Method of Analysis

If we are to summarize the objective of the data collection and analysis, it is to seek an answer to the following question: Other things being equal, is there statistically significant differences between the study areas and the control areas in the three impacts variables, which can be attributed to the inter-Myon differences in the program inputs? The impacts variables are the utilization of health and family planning services, community participation, and cost-effectiveness. Since this study cannot be conducted in a laboratory, multivariate analyses are

Figure 4-1: Number and the Location of Households Interviewed in the Four Enumeration Districts in Study Area I and II.






conducted to hold, as much as possible, the effects on the impacts variables of the factors other than the program inputs. The multivariate analyses chosen for this study are those of multiple regressions where the impact variables are dependent variables and the control variables and Myon dummy variables are independent variables.

The following multiple regression represents the types of least-squares analyses undertaken:

$$\log Y_{i} = \log a + \sum_{i=1}^{n} b_{i}X_{i} \log X_{i} + C_{2}D_{2} + C_{3}D_{3} + C_{4}D_{4} + \log e \dots (4-1)$$

where Y_i represents ith variable among the impact variable, $X_1, X_2 \dots X_n$ represent control variables and D_s are Myon dummy variables. All non-categorical variables are converted into logarithms to transform the regressions from linear additive into log linear additive or multiplicative forms. A multiplicative form standardizes the units of measurement, thus making the relationship revealed more meaningful and it also improves the fitness of the model, i.e., R^2 .

Myon dummy variables are inserted as follows:

	Shindong	Pagok	Moonmak	Seo-Myon
D ₁	1	0	0	0
^D 2	0	1	0	0
^D 3	0	0	1	0
D ₄	0	0	0	1

 D_1 , the dummy variable for Shindong Myon, is not inserted into regressions so that C_2 , C_3 and C_4 would show the difference in the impact variables between Shindong Myon and other Myons. The control variables chosen are demographic, socio-economic and attitudinal/cultural variables which are hypothesized to exert a varying degree of effects on the impact variables. The selection of the control variables is made on the basis of preliminary analyses of national data, theories, previous studies and <u>a priori</u> reasoning (see Chapter II). To the extent to which these control variables do their jobs, the b-coefficients of Myon dummy variables indicate the inter-Myon differential effects of program inputs on the impact variables. In other words, the control variables are inserted to hold "other things" equal so that one may observe the "pure" effect of program inputs on the impact variables.

Two sets of regressions are run—one with the 1980 baseline survey data and the other with the 1981 post-treatment survey data. Then, the b-coefficients of Myon dummy variables obtained with the 1980 data are compared with those obtained with the 1981 data. If there exist statistically significant differences between the b-coefficients of 1980 data and those of 1981 data, then, one may conclude that, within the confidence level specified by the statistical (t) tests, the program inputs put into the study areas vs. the control areas have had different effects on the impact variables between 1980 and 1981. Since the only difference in program inputs between 1980 and 1981 is the integrated program introduced into the study area, to the extent to which the control variables did their jobs, a significant difference revealed in the b-coefficient of Myon dummy variables between 1980 and 1981 may be interpreted as supporting the hypothesis of this study.

The method of analysis adopted for this study has the following advantages. First, it recognizes and takes account of the fact that many things affect the impact variables in addition to the program inputs. The method also takes account of the fact that these things change over the time of this study and that the way these things affect the impact

variables also changes. Finally, recognizing the fact that one year iterval is not long enough to show any significant effects of the integrated program on some of the impact variable impact, itermediate output measures, i.e., the utilization of health and family planning services is used as the impact variables in lieu of health status and fertility variables. Justification for this lies in the assumption that a greater degree of utilization of these services leads to an improvement in health and fertility control.

Before the above multivariate analyses are undertaken, the following types of preliminary analyses are also undertaken. First, frequency distributions of the impact variables and control variable candidates are constructed for each Myon for 1980 and 1981. Then, inter-Myon differences in these variables are compared between 1980 and 1981. Secondly, cross tabulations of the impact and control variables by Myons are constructed for 1980 and 1981. Then, the relationships revealed between these variables and Myons are compared between 1980 and 1981.

Finally, correlation matrices of all variables chosen are made for 1980 and 1981. Then, the 1980 matrix is compared with the 1981 matrix. This is done to examine if the relationships revealed between variables have changed between 1980 and 1981. An examination of these matrices has also alerted us to the extent to which regressions with these data may have the problem of multicollinearity.

CHAPTER V: DEFINITION AND SELECTION OF VARIABLES

5.1 Impact Variables

To recapitulate, the central hypothesis of this study is that, compared with segmented program, an integrated population program leads to a better utilization of health and family planning services, a greater degree of community participation and a more cost-effective performance. These, in turn, would bring about an improvement in health status and fertility control. Since a one year period is too short for us to observe a significant change in the final output variables, i.e., health status and fertility control, we have chosen the above three as the impact or, if you will, program performance variables.

The impact variables of this study may be presented as follows:

- (A) Service utilization variables:
 - 1. Number of health worker's home visit/month.
 - Number of visits to hospital, pharmacy, Health Center, herb doctor for preventive and curative services/month.
 - Number of visits to hospital, pharmacy, Health Center, herb doctor for curative services.
 - 4. Number of visits to hospital or Health Center for preventive services/month.
 - Number of visits to individual hospital for preventive or curative services/month.
 - Number of visits to general hospital (city, provincial, teaching) for preventive or curative services/month.
 - 7. Number of visits to pharmacy/month.
 - 8. Number of visits to Health Center/month.

- 9. Weighted number of visits to hospital (individual, city, provincial, general teaching) pharmacy, Health Center, herb doctor for preventive or curative service/month.
- Dummy variable indicating whether the wife is currently using a contraceptive or not.

The above preventive and curative services include not only health care but also family planning services. The utilization of services as presented above is measured for all population interviewed, and then, for those who have had at least one incidence of illness during the one month period prior to the time of interview.

(B) Community Participation Variables:

1. Number of attendance at mothers' club/month

2. Weighted index of interviewers' involvement in the program.

Community participation is mainly a qualitative variable. In order to come up with quantitative variables representing the degree of community participation so that they may be used in regression analyses, the above two have been chosen.

(C) Cost-effectiveness variables:

1. A patient's medical expenditure/day

2. Cost per health and family planning service given.

A patient's medical expenditure per day is an index of costs to the recipients of care, whereas cost per service include all costs involved in providing the service in question. The record of a patient's medical expenditures has not been kept by all interviewees. Thus, interviewers have to rely on the memory of interviewees and, in some cases, they were able to cross check it with a hospital's, clinic's or health center's record. As for cost per service, hospitals, clinics and health centers do not have a refined accounting method by which expenses are accurately allocated, say, between patient care, general operating costs and hotel-type services. By necessity, therefore, all expenditures are treated as those involved in providing services. Since general operating costs are fixed expenditures, cost per service may decline not as the result of cost-effectiveness but due to a higher rate of utilization of facilities and manpower.

5.2 Integration Variables

There are many definitions of integration in population programs.¹ "In its most general sense, an integrated program is a program that brings together family planning activity and other specialized and differenct services, and integrate these activities into a sngle or more co-ordinate set of activities.² Within this broad definition of integration, an integration may be made on the basis of organization, management or operation of a program. For this study, we define the degree of interaction with an aid of the following table.

As shown in Table 5-1, this study defines the intensity of integration by four criteria: progam inputs, organizations which administer or participate in the programs and the model of delivery of services.

The high integration area, Shindong Myon, has more program inputs than any other areas in the sample not only in terms of health and family planning services provided but also it has mothers' club office. Mothers' club has been organized by the local people with the encouragement and under the guidance of Seoul National University Health Center staff and students. Mothers' club is the focal point of housewives' activities about

Table 5-1: Definition of Integration Variable

		High In tegratio n (Study Area I)	Light Integration (Study Area II)	No Integration (Control Area I)	No Integration with Health Insurance (Control Area II)	
Program Inputs	• · ·	B, C, D	U	Α	A, B	1
Organization	····	SNU + LG	P + LG SNU +	5 T	5 T	· · · ·
Mode of Delivery of Services		Diverse service by one individual	Diverse services by one individual	Health care function separated from family planning service	Health care function separated from family planning service	
Program inputs: /	A = (existing government	program (i.e., T.B.,	family planning a	nd MCH program)	

B = government subsidized health insurance program

C = multipurpose workers providing preventive and curative health care and family planning services

D = mothers' club office operating

SNU = Seoul National University Organization:

LG = local government

health care, family planning and economic activites. In addition, in the high integration area, health and family planning services are delivered on an integrated approach by multipurpose workers under a joint sponsorship of Seoul National University and Chunseong Gun government.

The light integration area, Pagok Myon, has no more program inputs than the non-integration area, control area I. It has less program inputs than the non-intergration, control area II in that the latter has the government subsidized health insurance program. The light integration area differs from non-integrated areas in theat health and family planing services are delivered by multipurpose workers, on an integrated basis under a joint sponsorship of SNU and local government.

As mentioned above, differences within the two non-integrated areas lies in that control area II has health insurance program. Presumably, the presence of health insurance program improves the local residents' ability to pay for health and family planning services.

The extend of interaction under a varying degree of integration and non-integration on organizational, operational and functional bases are shown below with the aim of diagrams. Figure 5-1 shows organizational interactions.

Figure 5-1: Organizational Interaction Chart Among Government, Seoul National University and Community, for the High Integration Area.

The Advisory Committee plays an important role in coordinating each unit at all levels of planning and implementing the program. The committee, chaired by the Governor of Kangwon Province, consist of ll members: five community representatives, five staff members from the school and one staff member from the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs.





The Community Health Committee is made up of nine school staff appointed by the dean of the school. Its function includes planning and supervising the program and coordinating the research and training activities of the staff in the area.

The Board of Community Health Insurance is the decision-making body for the insurance program, and provides the major portion of community participation in the overall program. It has fifteen members; ten of which elected by the community, and five of which are appointed by the local government in order to facilitiate coordination with the government.

For the light integration area, health and family planning services are delivered through Pagok Myon health substation. Note that Pagok Myon has no health insurance program. As for non-integrated area I, e.g., Moonmak Myon, there is no direct involvement by Seoul National University and it has only government programs of T.B. eradication, family planning and M.C.H.

Figure 5-2 shows operational interactions among government, SNU and community for integrated vs. non-integrated area. Note that mothers' club in the high integration area serves as the channel through which community participates in the integrated program.

5.3 Control Variables-Demographic, Socioeconomic and Other Variables Affecting Program Performance

Since the major method of data analysis for this study is multivariate analysis, a particular attention is paid for the selection of control variables. On the basis of an analysis of the national data (as presented in Chapter II), previous studies, theories and <u>a priori</u> reasonsing, variables hypothesized as those most likely to influence the impact

Operational Interaction Among Government, SNU and Community for the High Integration and Non-Integration Area. Figure 5-2:



variables are chosen. They are for convenience grouped into four categories as shown below:

- (1) Demographic Variables:
 - (a) age
 - (b) sex
 - (c) marital status
 - (d) no. of sons
 - (e) no. of daughters
 - (f) no. of children living with
 - (g) no. of children living separately
 - (h) total no. of people living together
- (2) Socioeconomic Variables:
 - (a) education of head of household
 - (b) education of housewife
 - (c) occupation of head of household
 - (d) occupation of housewife
 - (e) income status
 - (f) modernization index such as television, refrigerator, magazines, etc.
 - (g) housing standard
- (3) Attitudinal/Cultural Variables:
 - (a) religion
 - (b) son preference
 - (c) attitude toward the use of contraceptives
 - (d) attitude toward seeking medical treatement
 - (e) attitude toward taking vaccinations
 - (f) attitude toward sanitation

- (4) Medical and Other Variables:
 - (a) no. of induced abortions
 - (b) no. of spontaneous abortions
 - (c) no. of children died
 - (d) no. of still births
 - (e) major illnesses experienced
 - (f) whether enrolled in health insurance

Data on all the above variables are collected. However, only those variables, which have revealed one kind or another relationship with the impact variables in the preliminary analyses, are used in principal data analyses.

Footnotes

¹Ness, Gayl D., in UNFPA, <u>On Integration of Family Planning with Rural</u> <u>Development</u>, Policy Development Studies, No. 1, UNFPA, New York, 1979.

²ESCAP, <u>Activating Inter-Related Links in Population, Food and Nutrition</u> <u>Programs: Theory and Practice</u>, Population Research Lead No. 7, ESCAP, Bangkok, 1980.

CHAPTER VI: Analysis of Data

6.1 Descriptive Analysis of Control Variables

Inter-Myon differences in socioeconomic variables are examined through frequency distributions. Figures 6-1 through 6-4 present the frequency distribution of households of each Myon of economic status, income, occupation and schooling based on the 1980 survey data. The 1981 survey data on socioeconomic variables are not presented here because they are not significantly different from the 1980 data on these variables.

Economic status of each household is divided into three categories by interviewers according to their assessment of each household's living standard during their visits. Figure 6-1 shows that Shingdon Myon and Pagok Myon—Study Areas I and II—have more uneven economic status compared with Seo Myon and Moomak Myon—Control Areas I and II; whereas, about 65 percent of households in control areas are classified as middle economic status group, about 40 percent of households in study areas are so classified.

When household incomes of each Myon are examined, Shindong Myon and Pagok Myon have more households with higher incomes--6 million to 7 million won per year range (about 700 won equals one U.S. dollar), than Seo Myon and Moonmak Myon, the control areas (see Figure 6-2). In looking at occupational distribution of households, the difference between study areas and control areas is blurred. Shindong Myon, Study Area I, and Moonmak Myon, Control Area II, have a greater number of workers on salary compared with Pagok Myon, Study Area II, and Seo Myon, Control Area I (see Figure 6-3). Whereas, more than 80 percent of households in Seo Myon are farmers, only about 40 percent of Shindong Myon's households are farmers.



Frequency Distribution of Households by Economic Status for Each Myon.

1980 Data

6-2

Figure 6-1









Figure 6-3



Frequency Distribution of Household Heads by Occupation for Each Myon. 1980 Data

The frequency distribution chart of households by occupation as presented in Figure 6-3 may be misleading in that occupation is a categorical variable. To make the chart legible, occupational categories are also limited to six. A histogram would have been more appropriate. To supplement the chart, the frequency distribution of households by all categories of occupation is presented in a tabular form in Table 6-1.

Reflecting the occupational distribution, a greater number of household heads in Sindong Myon and Moonmak Myon have schooling beyond the Primary School, i.e., 6 years of schooling, than Seo Myon and Pagok Myon (see Figure 6-4). In summary, one may rank study areas above control areas in economic status and annual household income. In education and occupation, Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon ranks higher than Pagok Myon and Seo Myon.

6.2 Comparative Analysis of Impact Variables Between 1980 and 1981

6.2.1 Frequency Distribution Charts

Inter-Myon differences in the impact variables are compared between those based on the 1980 baseline survey data and those from the 1981 post-treatment data. A visual inspection of Figure 6-5a and 6-5b indicates that, whereas in 1980, Moonmak Myon residents had a greater number of visits to one kind or another health facility for curative services than the residents of the othe three Myons, in 1981, the difference mostly disappeared except that Shindong Myon residents had the smallest number of visits for curative services.

When the inter-year change in the inter-Myon difference is examined for preventive visits, the change is more noticeable. In 1980, the residents of Moonmak Myon definitely had more visits to hospitals and health centers than the three other Myons and, among the three Myons, there

i :yon	Shindong Hyon	Seo Myon	Pogok Nyon	Noonmak Nyon
Occupation	Relative Fre.	Relative Fre.	Relative Fre.	Relative Fre.
Farmer	40.7	80.5	б.20	54.3
Labourer	11.2	2.8	7.9	0.8
Official	12.2	2.1	0.8	9.7
lierchant	6.4	4.3	1.9	9.0
Unemployment	3.4	3.5	3.8	3.8
Technician	4.7	0	6.0	1.4
Businessman	5.8	0.4	2.3	2.8
Soldier	6.4	0	• 4	0.3
Housewife	3.7	1.4	1.1	1.7
Engineer	0.3	0	0	1.7
Labourer Who Works in Foreign Land	0.7	0.7	0	2.1
Student	1.0	0.4	0	U
Others	3.4	3.9	13.9	5.2

Table 6-1: Distribution of Household Heads by Occupational Categories for Each Myon, 1980.



% of Households

70 Shindong Myon 60 Seo Myon Pogok Myon Moonmak Myon 50. 40 30 20 10 7-9 10-12 1-6 0 13-Schooling Years of Household Heads

Frequency Distribution of Household Heads by Schooling Years for Each Myon.

1980 Data



Curative Service during a month



was no noticeable difference. In 1981, Moonmak Myon residents still had more visits than the three other Myons for preventive service, but Shindong Myon definitely had more visits than the two Myons, namely Seo Myon and Pagok Myon (see Figures 6-6a and 6-6b). Although inferences on the effect of the program inputs should be postponed until multivariate analyses are completed, these frequency distributions indicate that Sindong Myon residents sought out preventive care more than the residents of other Myons in 1981 compared with 1980.

Inter-year changes in the utilization of health care among Myons are most prominent in health workers' home visits. Wheareas in 1980, inter-Myon difference was noticeable between Pagok and Moonmak Myons on one side and Shindong and Seo Myons on the other, in 1981, the difference between the two groups disappeared. Instead, Shindong Myon appeared as the area which definitely had more visits than all the three other Myons (see Figure 6-7a and 6-7b). Health workers' visits may be looked at as a program input rather than as an impact variable. Nevertheless, a relative increase in the visits in Study Area I between 1980 and 1981 is significant to observe.

A similar inter-year change is noticed in the frequency of attendance at mothers' club, an index representing community participation. Whereas there was no noticeable difference in the attendance among Myons in 1980, the attendance in Shindong and Seo Myons was definitely higher than the two other areas in 1981 (see Figures 6-8a and 6-8b). To the extent to which the attendance at mothers' club signifies the degree of community participation, housewives in Shindong and Seo Myons participated in community affairs to a greater extent than those in the two other areas in 1981 in comparison to 1980.







Figure 6-6b: Distribution of Households by the Number of Visits to Health Facilities for Each Myon in 1981.





Frequency of Health Worker's Home Visit during a month.



Figure 6-7b: Distribution of Households by the Number of Health Workers' Home Visits for Each Myon in 1981.

Figure 6-8a: Distribution of Households by the Attendance of Mothers' Club for Each Myon in 1980.



Frequency of Attendance at Mothers' Club during a month.



Figure 6-8b: Distribution of Households by the Attendance of Mothers' Club for Each Myon in 1981.

Frequency of Attendance at Mothers' Club during a month.

6.2.2 Cross Tabulations

When the inter-Myon differences in the input variables are compared between those based on the 1980 data and those from the 1981 data by comparing cross-tabulation of the 1980 data and that of the 1981 data, the results obtained from the examinations of frequency distribution charts are largely confirmed.

Table 6-2a presents a cross-tabulation of the number of visits to health facilities for curative care by Myon based on the 1980 data. Table 6-2b shows the same based on the 1981 data. As shown in the frequency distribution charts, the inter-Myon differences which existed in 1980 become smaller in 1981. Note that the significance level of the Tau tests of the inter-Myon differences decreased from .91s (1-.0889) to .70s (1-0.3048). Whereas Seo Myon had the greatest proportion of no-visitors in 1980 (69 percent), in 1981 Shindong Myon had the greatest number of no-visitors (70.4 percent). This indicates that, compared with othe Myons' residents, Shidong Myon residents decreased the curative visits between 1980 and 1981.

When the inter-Myon differences in the visits to health facilities for preventive care in 1980 are compared with those in 1981, the inter-Myon differences are less in 1981 than in 1980 (see Tables 6-3a and 6-3b). The significance levels of Tau tests decreased from .93 (1-.067) in 1980 to .83s in 1981. As shown in the frequency distribution charts, the noticeable difference between 1980 and 1981 is observed for Shindong Myon, the heavy integration area and Moonmak Myon, the Control Area I. Whereas the number of people who visited health facilities for preventive care remained the same or less in Seo Myon and Pagok Myon between 1980 and 1981, it increased significantly for Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon. When it is

Table 6-2a

DI PCT	I Shindong	Seo	Pagok	Moonmak	PUN TOTAL
	1	2 • I [3.		[
<u> </u>	1 195	$\frac{207}{370}$	182	1.82	1 765
	I 65.0 1	69.0 1	60.9	57.4	1 03.0
			15.0	15.0	I
1.	Î 34	37 1	29 1	83	<u>i 183</u>
	I 13.3	120.2	15.8	45.4 26.2	1
	12_31	[].	<u> </u>	6.3	j
2.	I 17	I 26	26	2.4	1] 93
	-I	[26•0] [7	[28.0]	25	I
	1 1.4		2.1	2.0	Ť
3.	I 21	[[9]	1	11	I I 56
·····	I37 <u>.5</u>	<u></u>	26.8	12.6	I
	I 1.7	L 3.0		•9	i T
4 -	I 4	[1	5	I 2:1
	I 20.0	20.0	1 35.0	25.0	I 3.6
	I .3	I La J	L 2.3	-4	Ĩ
5	<u>I</u>	7	1	[I
2.6	1 25.0	1 19.4	I 41.7	1 13.9	1 3.0
	I 3	[2 3]	[5.0	1 1 - 5	I T
	·i	[I	i	Ť.
0.	I 38.5	I 15.4	1 30.8	1 15.4	
a	<u> </u>		1, 1.3,	1 .6	ſ
	- <u>I</u>	I	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1	1 1 1 *
/ • •	- <u>i</u> () I ii	I (,	1 77.0	22.2	T
	<u>I 0</u>	I ()	1 2.3	1 • 5	1
-	· [I	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Ţ
8	<u> </u>	I <u>28.0</u>	1 20-0]?	T. 5 T. 4
	Î J.O	Į _3 .	.3	i õ	
	• [•••••	i • i	1 1 1]	
5.	<u>I 12</u>	I 7	1 13	1 3	1 35
	1 34.0	I 2.3	1 4.2		I Kory
	<u>I 1.0</u>	t <u>.</u> .6	I 1.1	2	I
IMUJG.	300	300	299	317	121.6 Grand Total N
TOTAL		247			

TAU B = .03296 SIGNIFICANCE = .0889 TAU c = .02874 SIGNIFICANCE = .0889 Cross Tabulation between Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor Curative Services during a month and Myon

	V124		Tabl	ble 6-2b				
COUNT RUW PCT COL PCT TUT PCT		1.1	2.1	31		. Sei		
X2 1.	I 209- I 1 70-4 I 	25) I 874 I	13 4 4 I 	16 5.4 29.1	13 I 4.4 I 	2 I 7 I 9 5 - ī	4 1.3 40.0	
Shindong_	18.3	2, 2 1	1.1	1.4	101 4		<u> </u>	
Seo	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	19.0 I 27.1 4.7	32 -1 11.3 I 35.2 I 2.8	14 I 4.9 I 25.5 I	12 I 4.2 I 34.3 I 1.00 I			
Pagok	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 & -137 \\ 1 & 50.4 \\ 1 & 20.0 \\ -12.0 \end{array} $		28	$ \begin{array}{c} -19 - 1 \\ 7 \cdot 0 \\ 34 \cdot 5 \\ 1 \cdot 7 \\ 1 \cdot 7 \\ \end{array} $	10 I 3 7 I 28 6 I	$ \begin{array}{c} 11 \\ 4 \cdot 0 \\ 52 \cdot 4 \\ \hline 1 \cdot 0 \\ 1 \cdot 0 \\ \end{array} $		
4	1 183 1 63.1 1 26.8 1 16.0	76 I 26.2 I 38.2 I	18 6.2 19.9 1.6	6 I 2.1 I 10.9 I .5 I		2 I 9.5 I 2 I		
COLUMN TOTAL	664 	199 17•4	91 8.0	55 4.8	1 35 3.1	21 1.8	10 •9	
الم	$ \begin{array}{r} 7 \cdot I \\ 3 & I \\ 1 \cdot 0 & I \\ 3 & I \\ 3 & I \\ 3 & I \\ 3 & I \\ 1 & I \\ 1 & 2 \cdot 5 & I \\ 1 & 1 & I \\ 3 & I \\ 1 & 2 \cdot 5 & I \\ 1 & I \\ 3 & I \\ 1 & 2 \cdot 5 & I \\ 1 & I \\ $	$ \begin{array}{c} & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & & & \\ & & & &$	$ \begin{array}{c} 9 \cdot 1 \\ 10 \\ 3 \cdot 4 \\ 29 \cdot 4 \\ 9 \\ -9 \\ 1 \\ 29 \cdot 4 \\ 9 \\ -1 \\ 5 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1 \\ 1$	R UW TD I AL 297 26 • 0 284 24 • 8 272 23 • 8 290 25 • 4 1143 100 • 0				

6-19

> Cross Tabulation between Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Curative Services during a month and Myon

Table	6-3a

	_X2 Shindong _	Seo	Pagok	Moonmaķ	P <i>G</i> I Total
()	2475	2587	270	2 382 33•3	1
	13 ±	10:3 1	-4:4	29	5.3 5.3
 2 ن	40.0 <u>I</u> I 1.3 I		10.0	40.0 1.3	I I 78 I
	50.9 50.9	25.9	8	25.9 .1	1
4 4 -		0 0	() 	33.3	
		2 (4-),() (7	40.0 .2	0 0 0 0	
······································		1 100.0	3	0	1 • 1
	50.0 2	25.0	89.0 1	8	
9,		0 0 0 0	0 		• • 1
CHEUNN TOLKE TOLKE	300 24.7 AU B= .038	300 2'+•7 800 SI	299 24.5	317 26.1 CE = .067	10010 10010
T.	AU C= .017 Cross Ta Hospital for Prev	VUI SI Abulation L,Pharmacy Ventive Se	GNIFICAN between h , Health ervices du	CE = .067 Number of Center o uring a m	4 Visits to r Herb Doctor onth and Myon

1980 Data

•


Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for preventive-Services during a month and Myon

remembered that the visits for curative care decreased for Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon between the survey years, it can be inferred that Shindong and Moonmak Myon residents decided to rely more on preventive care and less on curative care for their health and family planning.

The biggest change in the utilization of health care between 1980 and 1981 occurred in the number of health workers' home visits. Although the inter-Myon differences remained highly significant both in 1980 and 1981, Shindong Myon and Seo Myon, which had less than 8 percent of their residents receiving any visit in 1980, had 67 percent and 48 percent respectively of their residents receiving a visit or more in 1981 (see Tables 6-4a and 6-4b). As mentioned before, health workers' home visits may be considered as program inputs rather than as an impact variable. Nevertheless, the reversal of the ranking of Myons in the number of the visits between the survey years is remarkable in the magnitude of the change.

To summarize, in the utilization of health facilities, the inter-Myon differences decreased between 1980 and 1981. For health workers' home visits, however, there were no statistically significant changes between the survey years. On the other hand, in the number of attendance at mothers' club meetings, the inter-Myon differences increased between 1980 and 1981. Whereas the inter-Myon differences in the attendance figures were statistically insignificant (.52s by Tau B and C tests) in 1980, they became highly significant (.99) in 1981 (See Tables 6-5a and 6-5b). This result has been brought about by noticeable increases in the attendance figures among the residents of the study areas, Shindong and Pagok Myons between 1980 and 1981. Wheareas only 25 percent of the residents of the study areas attended a mothers' club meeting during the month preceding the 1980 survey, 42 percent of Shindong Myon residents and 33 percent of Pagok

Table 6-4a

couut -	X2									
CUL PCT I	Shindong	Seo	Pagok	Moonmak	PUI TOTAL					
	a a la constanta da	E- 8 100/00/14/2017/00/14/2017	1 3 a 3	4 • 1 	, 					
0	2979	31.0	19.7	1,183	7938					
ļ	23:8	37:8	15:2	13:1						
1.	17	8	81	98	204					
	1.4	7	6.7	<u> </u>	10.0					
2.	4.3	1.2	4730	4427	561					
····			I12:9	E						
3	<u>1</u>	Ö								
	11:3	8	11:3	73:2	. 7					
• • · ·	1 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	0		•6	•					
	g g	E	±8	100.0	1					
			<u>I</u> 8		· · · ·					
	0	0	1 1	1	1					
))		1 100.0	I O	.1					
· · · · · · · ·		I 0	1	<u> </u>						
8	0	- 8	1-100.9-	<u>i</u> 0	1					
	Ŭ Ŭ		· 3	Î Ő Į Ő						
CULUNN	2300	2300	297	316 -26•0	1215 100.0					
TAU	B = .333	99 SI	GNIFICANC	E = .0000						
TAU	Creas "	abulation	hetween	Number of	Health					
	Worker'	s Home Vi	sit and M	iyon						



Cross Tabulation between Number of Health Worker's Home Visit and Myon.

	X2				
	Shindong	Seo 2.	Pagok	Moonmak 4•	твруг
0	222	25.6	2,226	26.8	7933
	18:7 1	80.5	18:8	33:9	• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1.	70	49	6 8 1 26 5	70	257
	<u> </u>	4.0	5.6	<u> </u>	
2.	16.7	44.4	i 27.5	11.1	18
•••	I - 1.2	2.7.	1.7	:2	•
		100.Q		0 2	
		.1			-
<u> </u>	<u> 0 </u>	0	0	100.0	
		0	1 0 <u>1</u>		[
chriff.	24.7	2298	299	28.7	100.0
TAU E Tau (3 = .00154 C = .00107	SIG SIG	NIFICANCE NIFICANCE	= .4764 = .4764	



Cross Tabulation between Number of Attendance at Mothers' Club Meeting during the Month Preceding the Survey and Myon.

Table 6-5b



Cross Tabulation between Number of Attendance at Mothers' Club Meeting during the Month preceding the survey and Myon. 1981 Data Myon residents did so in 1981. For the residents of the control areas. Seo Myon and Moonmak Myon, the attendance figures remained virtually the same between 1980 and 1981. This appears to be a clear-cut case of statistically significant change in an impact variable for the residents of the study areas vis-a-vis for those of the control areas between the two survey years.

6.2.3: Chi-Squares Tests

As the third and final analysis of the impact variables, Chi-squares tests are conducted to examine the inter-year change in some of the input variables. Tables 6-6 through 6-10 present the frequency distributions of five variables and the result of Chi-squares tests in such a way as to enable us to compare the inter-year changes in these variables for the study areas with those for control areas.

In examining the utilization of health facilities, it is noteworthy that Shindong Myon residents visited health facilities for curative care in a (statistically) significantly smaller number in 1981 than in 1982, whereas the reverse is true for those who live in Seo Myon and Pagok Myon (see Table 6-6). For Moonmak Myon residents, there was no significant change between 1980 and 1981. For preventive services, the inter-year change in visits is in the opposite direction. Whereas Shindong Myon residents (statistically) significantly increased their visits to health facilities for preventive care between 1980 and 1981, there were no (statistically) significant changes for those who live in the other three Myons, although the latter also increased their visits (see Table 6-7).

As mentioned before, this indicates that in Shindong Myon, the high integration area, residents switched their emphasis from curative services to preventive care for their health and family planning need between the

Table 6-6

22

Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center, Herb Doctor for Curative Service/Month.

Nyon	Sin	dong	Nyon*	£	Seo My	yon*	Poq	gok Mj	yon*	Moonr	nak My	yon+
Fre.	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change
0	1 9 5	209	4	207	155	-52	182	137	-45	182	183	1
1	34	25	-9	37	54	17	29	44	15	83	76	-7
2	17	13	-4	26	32	6	26	28	2	24	18	-6
3	21	16	-5	9	14	5	15	19	4	11	6	-5
4	4	13	9	4	12	8	7	10	3	5	0	-5
5	9	2	-7	7	6	-1	15	11	-4	5	2	-3
6	5	4	-1	2	4	2	4	1	-3	2	1	-1
7.8	3	5	2	1	2	1	8	5	-3	2	2	0
9+	12	10	-2	7	5	-2	13	17	4	3	2	-1

* Inter-year difference is significant at .01 level by Chi-Squares test.

+ Inter-year difference is not significant at .01 level by Chi-Squares test.

Table 6-7

Number of Visits to Hospital and Health Center for Preventive Services/Month.

Nyon	Sin	dong	Nyon*	£	Seo M	yon+	Poq	gok My	yon+	Mooni	nak My	yon+
Fre.	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change
0	275	261	-14	287	271	-16	279	261	-18	282	246	-36
1	13	22	9	7	· 7	0	16	7	-9	2 9	40	11
2	4	8	4	1	2	1	1	3	2	4	2	-2
3	2	2	0	1	2	1	0	0	0	1	1	0
4	2	0	-2	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0
5	1	0	-1	2	1	-1	2	1	-1	0	0	0
6+	3	4	1	2	1	-1	1	0	-1	0	0	0

* Inter-year difference is significant at .05 level by Chi-Squares test.

+ Inter-year differences is not significant at .05 level by Chi-Squares test.

survey years. This is a desirable development. Before one can infer whether this is due to the program inputs or not, one has to take account of possible changes in other factors which may influence a resident's visit to health facilities. Multivariate analysis presented in the following section is an attempt to isolate the effects of program inputs on the impact variables.

As for health workers' home visits, the frequency of the visits increased (statistically) significantly for the residents of all the four Myons between 1980 and 1981 (see Table 6-8). However, the increase was the biggest for Shindong Myon and Seo Myon. Whereas 21 of the interviewed households in Shindon Myon received health workers' visits once or more during the month preceding the interview in 1980, in 1981, about 200 of the Shindong households interviewed received the visits once or more.

In the attendance at mothers' club meetings, both Shindong Myon and Pagok Myon (the study areas) residents differed from those who live in the control areas, i.e., Seo Myon and Moonmak Myon. Whereas, about 24 percent of Shindong Myon residents attended mothers' club meetings at least once a month in 1980, the figure increased to about 41 percent in 1981 (see Table 6-9). To a lesser extent, the attendance figure also increased for Pogok Myon, and the increase was statistically significant. For the residents of the control areas, Seo and Moonmak Myons, although the attendance figures also increased, it was statistically not significant.

As for the practice of birth control, only the residents of Shindong Myon increased the practice (statistically) significantly between 1980 and 1981. What is noteworthy about the increase in the birth control practice among Shindong Myon residents is the fact that the greatest increase was observed for vasectomies, the irreversable operations (see Table 6-10).

Table (6-8
---------	-----

Number of Health Worker's Home Visits/Month.

Myon	lyon Sindong Myon*			Sec Nyon*			Pogok Myon*			Noonmak Nyon*		
Fre.	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change
0 1	279 17	96 120	-183 103	291 8	146 116	-145 108	185 81	15 4 103	-31 22	183 98	181 92	-2 -6
2+	4	79	75	1	20	19	33	12	-21	35	17	-18
Missi	ng O	2	2	0	0	0	0	3	3	1	0	-1

Table 6-9

When Number of Attendance at Mother's Club/Month

tion

Myon	Sin	dong	Myon*	yon* Seo Myon+		Pogok Nyon*			Moonmak Myon+			
Fre.	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change
0,	227	173	-54	240	217	-23	226	181	-45	244	230	-14
1 2+	70 3	114 10	44 7	49 9	61 5	12 -4	68 5	ช6 5	18 0	70 3	59 1	-11 -2
Missi	ng O	0	0	2	1	-1	0	0	Û	0	0	0

* Inter-year differences is significant at .01 level by Chi-Squares test.

+ Inter-year difference is not significant at .01 level by Chi-Squares test.

6-31	

Table 6-10

				.01									
Myon	Sin	dong	Myon*	5	Seo My	yon+	Poq	gok My	yon*	Mooni	Moonmak Myon+		
Fre.	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	80	81	Change	
0	143	114	-29	139	117	-22	88	94	6	138	114	-24	
1	40	40	6	28	27	-1	24	19	5	31	26	-5	
2	1	14	13	11	11	0	8	7	-1	10	9	-1	
3	16	26	10	4	4	0	8	5	-3	4	7	3	
4	5	5	Q	6	7	1	7	9	2	3	3	0	
5	44	54	10	34	42	8	57	52	-5	58	61	3	
6	10	9	-1	1	5	4	12	8	-4	4	4	0	
No Respo	32 onse	29	-3	77	71	-6	95	78	-17	69	66	-3	
Summa	ary Ta	ble											
0	143	114	-29	139	117	-22	88	94	6	138	114	-24	
1	125	154	29	84	96	12	116	100	-16	110	110	0	
$ \begin{array}{rcl} 0 &= r \\ 1 &= 1 \\ 2 &= p \\ 3 &= v \\ 4 &= t \\ 5 &= c \\ 6 &= c \\ \end{array} $	no bir loop pills vasect cubal condom other	omy ligat metho	ntrol pr ion ds	actic	9			Sເ 0 1	mmary T = no bi = birth metho	Table: rth control con	ontro rol by e., 1	l y any -6.	

Practice of Birth Control

Chi-Squares tests conducted with the Summary Table only.

* Inter-year difference significant at .01 level by Chi-Squares tests.

+ Inter-year difference not significant at .01 level by Chi-Squares tests.

6.3 Multivariate Analysis of the Effects of Program Inputs on Impact Variables

As mentioned before, multiple regressions are run with the impact variables as the dependent variables and the control variables and the dummy variables representing Myons as the independent variables for our final phase of data analyses (see Section 4.4, Chapter IV). All variables are converted into logarithms, whenever possible, i.e., if a variable does not contain a zero or minus value. Two sets of regressions are run: one with the 1980 data and the other with the 1981 data. Then, the results are compared to see if there exist significant differences between 1980 and 1981 in the effects of program inputs on the impact variables, as measured by b-coefficients of Myon dummy variables.

As for the control variables, data are collected for the following categories of variables: demographic, socioeconomic and attitudinal factors (see Section 5.3, Chapter V).

Of many variables representing the demographic characteristics of a household, the following variables are selected and inserted into all regressions. The selection is done by step-wise regressions which select each variable from all the available candidates in order of their contribution to R squares. The demographic variables thus selected are: (1) family size, (2) family composition, and (3) the marital status of household trend. For socioeconomic variables, the computer selected (1) educational level of the household head, (2) economic status, (3) occupation of the household head, and (4) whether a household has medical insurance or not. Attitudinal variables are represented by a single variable indicating the housewife's attitude toward seeking medical care. All these selected variables are inserted in all the regressions run. Tables 6-11a through 6-14c present the results of regressions run with various variables representing the intensity of utilization of one kind or another health facility. In analyzing the effects on the utilization of health facilities, at first, regressions are run with the data for those households which had at the least one case of illness in the family during the week preceding the interview. The results as shown in Tables 6-11a and 6-11b indicate that although R squares are .44 for the 1980 data and .51 for the 1981 data, only the regression run with 1980 data is statistically significant at .02 level. This may be attributable to the smallness of the number of observations (72 and 76 for 1980 and 1981 respectively) rather than to the fitness of the model.

As for the control variables, none of their b-coefficients turned out to be statistically significant except those representing health workers' home visits and the attendance at mothers' club meetings. As expected these control variables have positive b-coefficients indicating that those who receive health workers' visits more often and those who attend mothers' club meetings more often also visit health facility more often than others. The significance of this finding is ambiguous in so much as these independent variables are also the impact variables.

Inter-Myon difference in the number of visits to a health facility is insignificant except that between Pogok Myon and Shindong Myon in 1980. Pogok Myon residents had a significantly higher number of visits than those who live in Shindong Myon. The difference, however, became insignificant in 1981.

When the inter-Myon differences, as shown by b-coefficients of Myon dummy variables in 1980, are compared with those in 1981, only that between Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon changed (statistically) significantly

Table 6-lla

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Preventive or Curative Services/Month (Include Only Those Households Which Had at Least a Case of Illness During the Week Preceding the Survey).

n=72

	*		
Independent Variables,	В	SE (B)	(Note)
Famíly size	. 186	.124	
Educational level of household head	.383	, 258	l. include
Economic status	-,163	.422	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	,757*	. 4.26	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	,726*	,424	skilled workers,
* Family composition	,		military personnels,
Older people living \$ no children pregnant woman	-,517	.694	workers assigned to overseas
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	-, 197	,473	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	.191	1.051	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l≕will seek medical care
Unemployed & Economically inactive	197	1,155	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	.721	, 820	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	-, 633	, 692	
Labourers	-, 338	1763	
Other occupations	631	1756	$R^2 = ,444$
Farmers 2		"	Adjusted R ² ~ ,226
Mother's attitude toward medical care	- 738	.943	Overall -F-Significance
Medical Insurance	.175	·493	= .0.2
• Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	NO	case	1
Separated	2.327	1.801	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	- , 532	1.095	- ance level
Married			*** 0.01
t Muon			** 0.05
SHIN DONG MYON			
SEO MYON	-071,4	.735	
POGOR MYON MOON MAK MYON	1.4.25	807	
CONSTANT	1 392	-631	
-	. 693	1.314	

Table 6-11b

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Preventive or Curative Services/Month (Include Only Those Households Which Had at Least a Case of Illness During the Week Preceding the Survey).

1981 Data

n=76

Independent Variables	В	SE (B)	(Note)			
Family size	- 0/9	15-1				
Educational level of household head	,007	1.50	l include			
Recomming status	, 375	, 323				
Notes of the lither should be a state	.070	, 451	civil servants,			
Number of nealth worker's nome visit	,137	, 439	company employees,			
Number of attendance at mother's club			skilled workers,			
* Family composition			military personnels,			
Older people living \$ no children pregnant woman	-,715	. 920	workers assigned to overseas			
Children living \$ no older people pregnant woman	-,921	. 646				
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	-3,040	1.950				
None of the above			2.			
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care			
Unemployed © Economically inactive	.349	2.075	whenever ill			
Merchant or vendors			0=will not seek			
Workers on salary 1	-,105	,924				
Labourers	-, 886	1.14)	Multiple $R = .51287$			
Other occupations	.517	,852	$R^2 = 126303$			
Farmers			Adjusted R ² = .0393			
Mother's attitude toward medical care Medical Insurance	722	1.241	Overall F Significance = 314			
* Marital status of household head						
Unmarried						
Separated	1, 456	2.339	Coefficient signific-			
Widow or Widower	. 683	2,499	ance level			
Married	·		*** 0.01 ** 0.05			
* Myon			* 0.1			
SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYON	,246	,913				
POGOK MYC/N	.385	. 807				
MOON MAK MYON	1.2.94	. 8-8 9				
CONSTANT	3 0/7	2.025				

...

Table 6-11c

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Preventive or Curative Services/Month (Include Only Those Households Which Had at Least a Case of Illness During the Week Preceding the Survey).

t test for difference of two b-coefficients: $\gamma_{i} = \widehat{\lambda}_{a} + \widehat{\lambda}_{i} \widehat{\lambda}_{i+} \dots (1980 \text{ data})$ let. $\gamma_{2} = \hat{\beta}_{1} + \hat{\beta}_{1} \times + \dots$ (1981 data) Null Hypothesis (Ho): $\mathcal{K}_{\mathcal{L}} = \mathcal{P}_{\mathcal{L}}$ $t = \frac{\beta_{x} - \lambda_{x}}{VAR(\beta_{x} - \beta_{x})}$ if sample size is large _____ Normal distribution (Z) 1) Seo Myon observed Z = 0.107Ho is accepted at the 10% significance level. 2) Pagok Myon observed Z = -0.909Ho is accepted at the 10% significance level. 3) Moonmak Myon observed Z = -1.695Ho is rejected at the 10% significance level. The Normal Distribution $P_{\mathcal{A}}(X \leq \chi) = \Lambda(\chi) = \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\pi}} e^{-\pi \frac{1}{2}} dx$ * Normal Table $\frac{\chi}{1.645} \frac{\mathcal{N}(\mathcal{X})}{0.95}$

between 1980 and 1981. (For the method of computing the significance of the difference between two b-coefficients, see Table 6-llc.) Whereas in 1980, after taking account of the effects of control variables on the dependent variable, Shindong Myon (the high integration area) residents visited a health facility less often than Moonmak Myon (the Control Area II) residents in 1980; the reverse was true in 1981. This seems to indicate that the program inputs led the former to seek health care more readily than the latter, in particular for preventive care. This confirms the result of the comparative analysis of the impact variables above.

In comparing the inter-Myon differences in the visits to a health facility in 1980 with those in 1981, another set of regressions are run with the data for all the households interviewed. The results are shown in Tables 6-12a through 6-12c. Note that as the number of observations incressed from 72 to 1,216 for 1980 and from 76 to 1,117 for 1981 data, although R squares decreased a great deal, its significance increased. Both the 1980 and 1981 regressions are now significant at .000 level by 7 ratio tests. R squares of .068 and .056 are disappointingly small. However, this is mainly due to the fact that the data used are micro-data for individual families rather than due to the weakness of the model. Regressions using grouped or macro-data usually show a much higher R squares not because of the superiority of the model but because of the lack of "noise" in the data when compared with those in micro-data. (For technical explanation, see Haitorsky and Cramer.¹)

Tables 6-12a and 6-12b show that some of the socioeconomic variables have significant impacts on the dependent variable. As expected, those who had medical insurance visited a health facility for curative or preventive care more often than those who did not in 1980 and 1981. Compared with

.

Table 6-12a

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Curative or Preventive Services/Month.

		n=1216	1980 Data
Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
Family size	, 053	. 034	
Educational level of household head	.024	.071	l. include
Economic status	.097	.104	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	· 278	,102	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	.557""	. 126	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no{children pregnant woman	261	、178	workers assigned to overseas work e rs
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	.171	. 149	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	.039	, 328	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	.060	、32 <i>1</i>	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	·55 m	.270	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	.133	<i>٦</i> (2)	
Labourers	, 113	.243	
Other occupations	.082	. 255	R ² = 068
Farmers 2		,	Adjusted R ² = ,05
Mother's attitude toward medical care	.093	. 258	Overall F Significance
Medical Insurance	· 52)***	. 17)	= .000 .
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	469	、6 <i>11</i>	
Separated	581	. 483	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	, 122	. 262	- ance level
Married			*** 0.01
* Myon SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYON POGOK MYON MOON MAK MYON CONSTANT	- , 128 , 347* - , 353* , 257	. 187 . 196 . 186 . 394	** 0.05 * 0.1
	- '	~ <i>,</i> ,	

Table 6-12b

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Curative or Preventive Services/Month.

	Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
	Family size	.024	.035	
	Educational level of household head	.031	.075	l. include
	Economic status	046	. 113	Civil servants,
	Number of health worker's home visit	.147	. 093	company employees,
	Number of attendance at mother's club	. 338***	. 130	skilled workers,
	* Family composition			military personnels,
	Older people living \$ no(children pregnant woman	334	. 183	workers assigned to overseas work e rs
÷	Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	. 166	. 153	
	Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	. 292	. 330	
	None of the above	-		2.
	* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
	Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	.032	. 283	whenever ill
	Merchant or vendors	.241	. 290	0=will not seek
	Workers on salary 1	. 118	.218	
	Labourers	. 203	. 255	
	Other occupations	. 259	. 273	$R^2 = .056$
	Farmers			Adjusted R ² = .038
	Z Mother's attitude toward medical care Medical Insurance	.102 .308*	. 351 . 168	Overall F Significance = .000
	* Marital status of household head			
	Unmarried	633	. 578	
	Separated	553	.507	Coefficient signific-
	Widow or Widower	131	. 268	ance level
	Married			*** 0.01
	* Myon SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYOU POGOK MYOU MOON MAK MYOU CONSTANT	25.2 .699*** 23.3 . 589	. 194 . 199 . 189 . 470	* 0.05 * 0.1

1117 n=117

Table 6-12c

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Preventive or Curative Services/Month.

 Seo Myon observed

 t (or Z) = 1.41 Ho is rejected at the 16.2% significance level.

 Pagok Myon observed

 Z = 1.26 Ho is rejected at the 21.2% significance level.

 Moonmak Myon observed

 Z = 0.45 Ho is accepted at the 21.2% significance level.

The Normal Distribution Table

Х	N(X)
1.40	0.919
1.25	0.094

farmers, those classified as merchants or vendors had a significantly higher number of visits in 1980. Families with older people but without children or pregnant women visited a health facility less often than families without children and older people. The attendance at the mothers' club meetings continues to exert positive effects on the use of health facilities. This may be intepreted as that those who participate more actively in community affairs tend to seek medical care more readily than others.

When the inter-Myon differences in the dependent variable in 1980 are compared with those in 1981, they are statistically significant for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon and for Shindong Myon vs. Pagok Myon but it is not significant for Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon. (See Tables 6-11a through 6-11c). This is a reversal of the situation when regressions are run with the data from those who had at least one case of illness in the family.

The b-coefficients of Pogok Myon and Noonmak Myon dummy variables inserted in the 1980 regression are statistically significantly different from those in 1981 regression because the residents of these Myons incresed the number of visits more than Shindong Myon residents between 1980 and 1981.

The reason why the residents living in the high integration area increased the utilization of health facilities less than those in the Control Area IL (Moonmak Myon) and the light integration area (Pogok Myon), may be found when the visits to health facilities are divided into those for curative care and those for preventive care.

Tables 6-13a through 6-13c present the results of regressions run with the number of visits to health facilities for curative care as the dependent variables and Tables 6-14a through 6-14c those of the visits for preventive care. As for the curative visits, the differences in

Table 6-13a

n=1216 1980 Data

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Curative Services/Month.

	I B I	SE(B)	(Note)
			(
Family size	.029	·032	
Educational level of household head	F. Lev	el Insufficient	l. include
Economic status	,015	.094	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	. 131	.096	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	· 548***	. 118	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no(children pregnant womar	266	.166	workers assigned to overseas workers
Children living \$ nc(older people pregnant woman	.141	,13 9	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$.093	, 306	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	.087	306	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	,582**	, 252	0=will not seek
Workers on salary l	097	· <i>191</i>	
Labourers	023	. 227	
Other occupations	. 057	.236	R ² = .05€
Farmers 2		, i	Adjusted $R^2 = .043$
Mother's attitude toward medical care Medical Insurance	F level 、464***	Insufficient ,160	Overall F Significance = 0000
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	-, 358	.634	
Separated	-,493	. 452	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	, 138	. 243	ance level
Married	-		*** 0.01
* Myon SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYON POGOK MYON MOON MAK MYON CONSTANT Number of Visets to bugget of preventance	010 . 439** 	, 125 , 182 , 194 , 291	** 0.05 * 0.1

.

.

Table 6-13b

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Curative Services/Month.

1001 0-+n=1117 Households

Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
Family size	.026	. 033	
Educational level of household head	008	. 446	1. include
Economic status	038	.107	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	.081	. 088	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	, 348	. 123	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no(children (pregnant woman	-,299	.174	workers assigned to overseas work e rs
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	.090	,145	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	, 222	,314	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l≃will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	189	. 269	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	- 251	.275	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	. 086	702 .	
Labourers	. 058	,242	
Other occupations	.250	.259	$R^2 = .059$
Farmers 2			Adjusted $R^2 = ,040$
Mother's attitude toward medical care	.047	,333	Overall F Significance
Medical Insurance	.322 ⁷	. 159	
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	486	.548	
Separated	-,404	, 481	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	-, 0.35	、254	ance level
Married			*** 0.01
* Myon			** 0.05 * 0.1
SHIN DONG MYON	*		
SEU MYON POGOK MYON	.320	.184	
MOON MAK MYON	- 415 - 207	. 18 1	
CONSTANT	056	. 08.5	
	۱ I	(

Table 6-13c

- D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Curative Services/Month.
- 1) Seo Myon observed
 - Z = 1.294

Ho is rejected at the 20% significance level.

2) Pogok Myon observed

Z = 1.370

Ho is rejected at the 17.8% significance level.

3) Moonmak Myon observed

Z = 0.189

Ho is accepted at the 20% significance level.

* Normal Table

Χ	N(X)
1.282	0.900
1.35	0.911

b-coefficients of Myon dummy variables between 1980 and 1981 regressions indicate that Seo Myon and Pogok Myon residents increseed the visits significantly more than Shindong Myon residents. The difference in the curative visits between Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon changed insignificantly between 1980 and 1981.

When the inter-Myon differences in 1980 are compared with those in 1981 for preventive visits, the reverse is true. (See Tables 6-14a through 6-14c.) Compared with Shindong Myon residents, Seo Myon and Pogok Myon residents decreased their preventive visits between 1980 and 1981. However, the inter-year changes in the inter-Myon differences are insignificant. Moonmak Myon residents, on the other hand, increased their preventive visits vis-a-vis Shingdon Myon residents between 1980 and 1981. But the change is again statistically insignificant at .05 level.

The above analyses based on the separation of the visits for curative care from those for preventive care indicate that Seo Myon and Pogok Myon residents increased the overall visits to health facilities significantly more than Shindong Myon residents because they went there more often for the treatment of illnesses. As for preventive care, Shindong Myon residents increased the visits more than Seo Myon and Pogok Myon residents. This confirms the result of the previous analyses of the impact variables that Shindong Myon residents decreased their curative care visits but increased their preventive care visits between 1980 and 1981. Again the significance of this is to be found in that the program inputs may have something to do with the fact that those who live in the high integration area shifted their reliance from curactive care to preventive care.

As for the effects of the control variables on the dependent variables, the division of the visits into two categories have done little to change except the followings. In 1980, families of a greater size

Table 6-14a

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Preventive Services/Month

		n-1216	1980 Data
Independent Variables	· B	ŞE (B)	(Note)
Family size	、024 ^{**}	,0/2	
Educational level of household head	,025	, 025	l. include
Economic status	,022	. 037	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	.148***	. 036	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	800,	.044	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no(children)			workers assigned to overseas workers.
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	,030	,050	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	-,056	.115	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	029	.114	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	-,030	1095	0=will not seek
Workers on salary l	. 035	,076	
Labourers	.089	,085	
Other occupations	.024	. 090	$R^2 = , 033$
Farmers 2			Adjusted R^{2} , $O/7$
Mother's attitude toward medical care _ Medical Insurance	.011 .058	.090 .060	Overall F Significance ⁼ 、005
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	-,113	, 237	
Separated	- , 090	. 169	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	- , 0/6	.092	ance level
Married	-		*** 0.01
* Myon			* 0-T
SHIN DONG MYON		0.66	
SEO MYON Pogok myon	021	. 000	
MOON MAK MYON	099	. 065	
CONSTANT	- 136	. 137	
	1	1	1

.

Table 6-14b

D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb Doctor for Preventive Services/Month.

Independent Variables

n=1117 Households 1981 Data

в	SE(B)	(Note)
evel	insufficient	
38	.023	l. include
evel	insufficient	Civil servants,
~ **		_

Family size	F level	insufficient	
Educational level of household head	,038	.023	l. include
Economic status	F level	insufficient	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	.008	.031	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	F level	insufficient	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no children pregnant woman	061	,062	workers assigned to overseas workers
Children living \$ no older people pregnant woman	1082	.051	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older people	.079	(11)	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l≕will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	、235^^	.094	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	F level	insufficient	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	.028	.067	
Labourers	.159*	.082	
Other occupations	F level	insufficient	$R^{2} = 0.037$
Farmers 2			Adjusted R ² = ,024
Mother's attitude toward medical care	.060	۰،۱۱۶	Overall F Significance
Medical Insurance	F level	in sufficient	= .000
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	-,144	.194	
Separated	- , 154	171	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	1097	.089	ance level
Married		.	*** 0.01
* Myon SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYON POGOK MYON MOON MAK MYON		. 065 . 064 . 062	** 0.05 * 0.1
CONSTANT	- 008	, 13.5	

Table 6-14c

- D.V.: Number of Visits to Hospital, Health Center, Pharmacy or Herb Doctor for Preventive Services/Month.
- Seo Myon observed

Z = -0.438

Ho is accepted at the 5% significance level.

2) Pogok Myon observed

Z = 0.632

Ho is accepted at the 5% significance level.

3) Moonmak Myon observed

Z = 0.888

Ho is accepted at the 5% significance level.

* Normal Table

X	N(X)
1.96	0.975

visited health facilities for preventive care significantly more often than those of a smaller size. Note also that those classified as unemployed or economical inactive and laborers had a significantly higher number of preventive visits than farmers in 1981, whereas there was no significant difference in 1980. The reasons for this are difficult to assess.

Regressions run with the number of health workers' home visits as the dependent variables show a better fitness of the model and a more clear-cut, consistent result on the central hypotheses of this study (see Tables 6-15a and 6-15b). R squares are now respectably .188 for 1980 and .167 for 1981. This improvement in the model is reflected in the performance of the control variables inserted. 9 control variables have significant b-coefficients in the regression run with the 1980 data and 6 in those run with the 1981 data. Households with a higher level of educational achievement and occupational categories (salary workers and other non-farmers vs. farmers) and those with a more ready attitude to seek medical care have received a greater number of home visits compared with other households.

The difference in family composition now plays a greater role in influencing the number of visits. Families with children or pregnant women received a significantly greater number of visits than those without them both in 1980 and 1981. This must be due to the fact that health workers' home visits are mainly for family planning and maternal and child health care.

When the inter-Myon differences in the home visits in 1980 are compared with those in 1981, the result unequivocally supports one of the central hypotheses of this study. Whereas Shindong Myon residents received the home visits in a significantly smaller number than the other three

Table 6-15a

D.V.: Number of Health Worker's Home Visit/Month

n=1216 1980 Data

Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
Period and a second s	011	. 010	
ramily size	**	1010	
Educational level of household head	.042	, 0,270	1. include
Economic status	.014	.030	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	Depende	nt Variable	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	' <i>08</i> 0'	1036	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no(children pregnant woman	096	1051	workers assigned to overseas workers
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	· /3)***	,042	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ nofolder	. 279***	. 093	
None of the above			2.
 Occpation of household head 			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	.109	,093	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	./20	.017	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	122	~~~	
Labourers	049	. 069	
Other occupations	***	- 0-7	$R^2 = 188$
Farmers		. 0 73	Adjusted R ² = , 175
Mother's attitude toward medical care	.120*	1074	Overall F Significance
Medical Insurance	048	.049	÷ ,000 ;
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	124	,193	·
Separated	094	, 138	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	, 065	.075	ance level
Married			*** 0.01
* Myon			** 0.05
SHIN DONG MYON			U . J.
SEO MYON	.034	.054	
POGOK MYON MCON MAK MYON	· 503	.054	
	509	· D.5·1	
CONS TANT.	32.0	.11.2	

Table 6-15b

n=1117 Households 1981 Data

Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
Family size	.013	. 011	
Educational level of household head	.052**	. 024	l include
Economic status	.020	0.37	Civil servants.
Number of health worker's home visit	Depender	+ Variable	
Number of attendance at mother's club	, 114 ^{***}	,042	skilled workers.
* Family composition			military personnels
Older people living \$ no children	-, 08.3	.060	workers assigned to overseas workers
Children living \$ no older people pregnant woman	, ۲۱2 ^{***}	.049	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no older people	.314***	. 109	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	-,120	.092	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	.085	.094	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	024	.071	
Labourers	085	.083	
Other occupations	-,320	. 889	$R^2 = ./67$
Farmers 2			Adjusted R ² = ,/52
Mother's attitude toward medical care Medical Insurance	030 .184***	·115 . 054	Overall F [*] Significance
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	-, 233	188	
Separated	-,230	,165	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	, 148*	.087	ance level
Married			*** 0.01 ** 0.05
 Myon SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYON POGOK MYON MOON MAK MYON CONSTANT 	303 329 329 228	. 627 . 064 . 060	* 0.1

.

Myons' residents in 1980, in 1981 the reverse is true. Thus, when the inter-year change is examined for statistical significance, it is significant for Shindong Myon vs. Pogok Myon and Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon but insignificant for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon. (See Table 6-15c.)

The central hypothesis of this study is that, compared with the segmented program, the integrated program exerts different effects on the impact variables on the virtue of its mode of delivery, not because of its magnitude of service delivered. Therefore, although the above result is unequivocal in its implications, to the extent to which the home visits by health workers reflect the magnitude of program inputs, the conclusion that the above regressions support one of the hypotheses of the study should be made with a great deal of caution.

So far, the impact variables or the performance variables on which the effects of the program inputs examined, are various variables representing the intensity of the utilization of health care for curative and/or preventive purpose. These performance variables are, however, not the final outcome variables, which are health stauts. As mentioned before, the intensity of the health care utilization is used in lieu of health status as the performance variable because the period between the surveys, i.e., one year, is thought to be too short for the program inputs to exert any effect on them. It is assumed that a better use of health care would lead to a better health.

Next, we examine the effects of the program inputs on another kind of performance variable, namely, fertility. Again, in consideration of the brevity of the time period during which the program inputs are expected to exert influence, the current practice of family planning is used as the

D.V.: Number of Health Worker's Home Visit/Month

1)	Seo Myon observed
	Z = 0.536
	Ho is accepted at the 1% significance level.
2)	Pagok Myon observed
	Z = 9.905
	Ho is rejected at the 1% significance level.
3)	Moonmak Myon observed
	Z = -1.550
	Ho is rejected at the 12.2% significance level.

* Normal Table

X	N(X)
2.60	0.995
1.55	0.939

performance variable in lieu of fertility. Tables 6-16a through 6-16c show the result of such examination.

Although R squares for the regressions with family planning practice as the dependent variables are less than those for the regressions with health workers' home visits as the dependent variables, they are greater than for all other regressions run with all sample observations. This indicates that the model used for these regressions is a relative good one compared with that used for other regressions.

When the inter-Myon differences in the family planning practice in 1980 are compared with those in 1981, for the difference between Shindong Myon and Pogok Myon and that between Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon, the magnitude of difference increased (statistically) significantly between the years. On the other hand, the difference between Shindong Myon and Seo Myon decreased between 1980 and 1981, but the decline was statistically insignificant at .16 level. This indicates that, after taking account of the effects of the control variables on the dependent variable, the program inputs apparently have had an effect of increasing family planning acceptance rate among the residents of the high integration area (Shindong Myon) in comparison with Pogok Myon and Moonmak Myon residents. The importance of this finding may be sought in that those who had vasectomies constitute the biggest group among those Shindong Myon residents who switched from non-acceptors to acceptors in 1981 (see Table 6-10).

As for the control variables, most variables representing demographic, socioeconomic and attitudinal variables have significant b-coefficients in the regression run with the 1980 data and, to a lesser extent, in that run with the 1981 data. As expected, families of a greater size practiced family planning significantly more than those of a smaller size both in

Table 6-16a

D.V.: Practice of Family Planning

* Value Assignment Family with Family Planning: 1 Family without Family Planning: O

Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
Pamily size	031	.010	
Educational level of household head			l. include
Economic-status	0.0	0.28	<pre> Civil servants </pre>
Aumber of health worker's home wisit	- 043	.031	
Sumber of attendance at methow's slub	.106	.035	company amproyees,
Register of accendance at mother 5 Club			SALLIEG WOLKELS,
			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no children (pregnant woman			workers assigned to overseas workers.
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	024	- 038	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no older people	379	.084	
None of the above		· •	2.
Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	0.27	- 118	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	- 016	. 07	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	·110 +4	. 056	
Labourers			Multiple $R = .28144$
Other occupations	001	069	R ² 07921
Farmers	•012		Adjusted R20601
Mother's attitude toward medical care	.015	180	Overall F Significance
Medical Insurance	091**	· 044	- 0 00
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	•334	•264	
Separated	374**	- (70	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	-, 284*	+147	- ance level
Married			*** 0.01
			** 0.05 * 0.1
SHIN DONG MYON	° ▶-≯-		v/ - L
SEO MYON	115	. 051	
POCOK MYON	088	.056	
MUUN MAK MYUN	007	. 051	
CONSTANT	118 - [- [1]	

Table 6-16b

D.V.: Practice of Family Planning

* Value Assignment { Family with Family Planning: 1 Family without Family Planning: ()

1981 Di. .a

Independent Variables	В	SE (B)	(Note)
Family size	• 033	.012_	
Educational level of household head			1. include
Economic-status	-068 **	· 034	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	. 008	×029	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	- 028	.040	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no(children pregnant woman	026	• 066	workers assigned to overseas workers
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman		•	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$. po(older people	- 531 ***	. 09	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed & Economically inactive	- 090	. 103	wheneves ill
Merchant or vendors	-011	. 087	0=will not seek
Workers on salary 1	. DDS	.062	
Labourers	> 0 39	- 080	
Other occupations	- 101	- 082	
Farmers 2			Adjusted R ² =
Mother's attitude toward medical care Medical Insurance	016	- 128 - 052	Overall F Significance
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	.168	. 243	
Separated	086	- 173	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	283*	- 153	- ance level '
Married			*** 0.01 ** 0.05
* Myon Shin Dong Myon	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		* 0.1
SEO MYON	+. 113 ▼	. 061	
POGOK MYON MOON MAK MYON	1.116 **	. 058	
CONSTANT	- 674	. 163	
	J .	J	1

•
Table 6-16c

D.V.: Number of Health Workers' Home Visits

Х	N(X)
1.40	0.919
1.55	0.939

1980 and 1981. It is interesting to note that unmarried household heads practiced family planning more than those who were married.

As expected, households of a higher economic status and occupational categories (in comparison with farmers) practiced family planning in a significantly greater number than those of a lower status and farmers in 1980 and 1981. Those with a record of a higher rate of attendance at mothers' club meetings practiced family planning significantly more than those with a record of a lower rate in 1980, but in 1981, the difference became insignificant. Those with medical insurance practiced family planning in a significantly smaller number than those without it both in 1980 and 1981. This may be because those with medical insurance may rely on induced abortion as a mean of fertility control more than those without medical insurance.

The third category of performance variable, on which the effects of program inputs are examined, is community participation. As we attempted to come up with variables representing community participation which does not rely on individual perception, the only variable on which we can obtain the necessary data was the attendance at mothers' club meetings. The role of mothers' club is explained in Section 5.1, Chapter V.

Tables 6-17a through 6-17c show that when the attendance at mothers' club meeting is used to represent the intensity of community participation, one of the central hypotheses of this study is clearly supported. In 1980, after taking account of the effects of control variables on the impact variable, the attendance rate for Shindong Myon housewives was higher than that for the three other Myons. However, the difference was statistically insignificant. In 1981, the difference increased to the extent that it is now significant at .01 level for that between Shindong Myon and the two

6-59

Table 6-17a

D.V.: Number of Attendance at Mother's Club/Month

n=1216 1980 Data

Independent Variables	В	SE(B)	(Note)
Family size	. 008	.008	
Educational level of household head	.026	016	1. include
Economic status	.05/1**	024	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	, 051 ^{##}	0.3	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	Dependen	it Variable	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels.
Older people living \$ no children	052	.041	workers assigned to overseas workers
Children living \$ no(older people pregnant woman	056*	× a34	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no(older (people	, nq ^{**}	.076	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Economically inactive	063	.015	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	-, 128	. 06-2	0=will not seek
Workers on salary	098**	. 050	
Labourers	-,059	,056	
Other occupations	-,087	,059	$R^2 = 0.32$
Farmers 2			Adjusted R^{2} , $0/6$
Mother's attitude toward medical care	081	.060	Overall F_Significance
Medical Insurance	015	,040	= .007
* Marital status of household head	//	11-1	
Unmarried	.054	1156	
Separated	-, 069	.///	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	-, 0.34	,060	ance level
Married			*** 0.01
* Myon			* 0.1
SHIN DONG MYON	-,044	.043	
POGOK MYCH		.045	
MOON MAK MYON	009	. • 43	
CONSTANT	- 205**	.091	

Table 6-17b

D.V.: Number of Attendance at Mother's Club/Month

n=1117 Households 1981 Data

Independent Variables	· B	SE(B)	(Note)
	00 A	008	
Family size	.007	.000	
Educational level of household head	.008	. 0/1	1. include
Economic status , ,	. 051	, 026	Civil servants,
Number of health worker's home visit	.058	.021	company employees,
Number of attendance at mother's club	Dependent	Variable	skilled workers,
* Family composition			military personnels,
Older people living \$ no children pregnant woman	-, 091**	.042	workers assigned to Overseas workers
Children living s no older people pregnant woman	030	-, 03.5	
Children \$ Pregnant woman living \$ no older people	117	<i>. ٥ ٦</i> ŋ	
None of the above			2.
* Occpation of household head			l=will seek medical care
Unemployed \$ Fconomically inactive	-,029	.066	whenever ill
Merchant or vendors	.109	.067	0≔will nct seek
Workers on salary l	014	. 051	
Labourers	021	.059	
Other occupations	-, 032	. 063	R ² = .084
Farmers 2			Adjusted $R^2 = .067$
Mother's attitude toward medical care	146*	. 081	Overall F Significance
Medical Insurance	.060	- 039	·• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
* Marital status of household head			
Unmarried	-,243*	.134	
Separated	-, 090	.117	Coefficient signific-
Widow or Widower	112*	. 062	ance level
Married			*** 0.01 ** 0.05
* Myon			* 0.1
SHIN DONG MYON SEO MYON	1716	e ant	
POGOK MYON	1 . 0.29	.045	
MOON MAK MYOM	1.195 Ant	.043	
CONSTANT	375 ***	, 104	
· · ·	1 1-	I i	

Table 6-17c

D.V.: Number of Attendance at Nother's Club/Nonth

- 1) Seo Myon observed
 - Z = -2.095

Ho is rejected at the 5% significance level.

- 2) Pogok Myon observed
 - Z = -0.365Ho is accepted at the 5% significance level.
- 3) Moonmak Myon observe d
 - Z = -2.905
 - Ho is rejected at the 5% significance level.
- * Normal Table

X N(X) 1.96 0.995 control areas, namely, Seo Myon and Moonmak Myon. The difference in the attendance rate between Shindong Myon (high integration area) and Pogok Myon (light integration area) remains insignificant.

The t tests of the difference between two sets of b-coefficients, those for 1980 and those for 1981, confirm that inter-Myon differences in the attendance rate for Shindong Myon vs. the control areas changed significantly (at .05 level) between 1980 and 1981. Therefore, to the extent to which the attendance rate at mothers' club meetings represents community participation, the hypothesis that an integrated program vis a vis a segmented program enhances community participation is clearly supported.

This conclusion is buttressed by the fact that the model used is significant at .007 level and that control variables did their jobs well. Note that among the control variables inserted, the people with a higher economic status attended the meeting significantly more often than others both in 1980 and 1981. Health workers' home visits apparently prompted housewives to attend the meetings as they influenced families to visit health facilities more readily. Both in 1980 and 1981, those who received a greater number of home visits attended the meetings significantly more often than others. Compared with farmers, those households whose heads are workers on salary and merchant or vendors attended the meetings significantly less often in 1980. The difference, however, became insignificant in 1981.

One of the central hypotheses of this study is about program efficiency. For this study, the data on costs turn out to be most difficult to collect. There are no accounting data on costs allocated on the basis of function. Only data we have been able collect are the monthly budgets for health centers, the entire amount of which is routinely spent each month.

Tables 6-18a through 6-18c show the monthly budget for each Myon and the number of health workers' home visits and that of the visits to a health center for each Myon. The budget covers the entire cost of health workers' activities and that of the halth center's operation. As shown in Table 6-18a, when the budget is divided by the number of home visits and the visits to a health center, for Shindong Myon and Seo Myon, the cost per service decreased by 7,700 wons and 6,060 wons per service and about 77 and 66 percent, respectively. (About 700 wons equal one U.S. dollar). For Pogok Myon and Moonmak Myon, it substantially increased between 1980 and 1981.

This does not necessarity lead one to conclude that program inputs into Shindong Myon and Seo Myon between 1980 and 1981 enhanced the efficiency of health and population program there in comparison with the other two Myons. An examination of Table 6-18a indicate that this is brought about by the fact that while the budgets increased by about the same proportions (about 9 percent) for all the four Myons between 1980 and 1981, the number of the visits increased more than four times for Shindong Myon and more than three times for Seo Myon. On the other hand, the volume of services received actually declined substantially for Pogok Myon and Moonmak Myon between 1980 and 1981. Therefore, to the extent to which a greater utilization of resource leads to a greater efficiency and to the extent to which this greater use is brought about by program inputs, the hypthesis of this study about efficiency is supported. On the other hand, to the extent to which the increase in the utilization is brought about by the inputs from the outside where some of its contribution is not supported by the budget, the above inference should be qualified.

Table 6-18: Analysis of Cost/Service (₩ 700 = U.S. \$1).

Year		1980			1981		Change of
Myon	N.V	Budget/ Month	Cost/ Service	N.V.	Budget/ Month	Cost/ Service	Cost/ Service
Sindong Myon	76	758,333	9,978	366	833,333	2,277	-7,701
Seo Myon	62	566,666	9,140	203	625,000	3,079	-6,061
Pogok Myon	194	533,333	2,749	153	583,333	3,813	1,064
Moonmak Myon	287	683,333	2,381	150	750,000	5,000	2,619

(a) N.V. = Summation of Number of Health Worker's Home Visits and Total Number of Visits to Health Center.

(b) N.V. = Total Number of Visits to Health Center.

Year		1980			1981		Chango of
Myon	N.V	Budget/ Month	Cost/ Service	N.V.	Budget/ Month	Cost/ Service	Cost/ Service
Sindong Myon	44	758,333	17,235	77	833,333	10,823	-6,415
Seo Myon	52	566,666	10,897	46	625,000	13,587	2,690
Pogok Myon	44	533,333	12,121	20	583,333	29,167	17,046
Moonmak Myon	110	683,333	6,212	122	750,000	6,148	-64

(Table 6-18 continued)

(c) N.V. = Number of Health Workers Home Visits/Month

Year		1980			1981		Change of
Myon	N.V	Budget/ Month	Cost/ Service	N.V.	Budget/ Month	Cost/ Service	Cost/ Service
Sindong Myon	32	758,333	23,698	289	833,333	2,884	-20,814
Seo Myon	10	566,666	56,667	157	625,000	3,981	-52,686
Pogok Myon	150	533,333	3,556	133	583,333	4,386	830
Moonmak Myon	177	683,333	3,861	128	750,000	5,859	1,998

When the services for which the budget was spent are divided into two categories, i.e., the visits to a health center and health workers' home visits, it is shown that most of the increase in the services for Shindong Myon and all of the increases for Seo Myon occurred in health workers' home visits. In terms of the visits to a health center, the service increased for Shindong Myon and Moonmak Myon while it actually declined for Seo Myon and Pogok Myon between 1980 and 1981. Thus, the cost per service (measured by the visits to a health center) declined for the former Myons and increased for the latter Myons. In terms of health workers' home visits, as the volume of visits increased nine times for Shindong Myon and more than ten times for Seo Myon, the cost per service measured by the home visits declined accordingly for these Myons. On the other hand, for Pogok Myon and Moonmak Myon, the volume of visits declined and, therefore, the cost per service increased between 1980 and 1981. The separation of services into two categories helped us to illustrate the obvious fact, namely, the cost per the combined services declined a great deal for Shindong Myon and Seo Myon, because health workers' home visits in these Myons increased 9 to 10 times while the entire budget increased about 7 and 6 percent respectively between the two survey years.

6.4 Correlation Matrix of All Variables

As a part of selecting the impact and control variables to be used, a correlation matrix of all candidates for these variables has been constructed. After an examination of the matrix, many of the candidates are eliminated because of the lack of significant relationships between control variable candidates and the impact variable candidates and also because of the existence of close relationships between control variable

candidates. Close inter-correlations among control variables are to be avoided to alleviate the possible problems of multicollinearity. Table 6-19a presents the correlation matrix of all the variables selected to give the readers a better feel of the data.

6.5 Limitations of Data

Data problems we encountered in this study may be classified as those of conceptual and those of sampling nature. Conceptual one has to do with definitional problems. To repeat again, the objective of this study is to examine the effects on the impact variables of an integrated vs. segmented population program. In other words, we want to study the differential effects of the different modes of delivery, not those of the different volumes of services. However, there are no data that enable us to separate the effects of the difference in the mode of delivery from those in the volume of attention and services provided.

Second conceptual problem is the necessity of using the utilization of services and the practice of family planning as performance variables. Due to the shortness of the period during which the program inputs are administered, the utilization of health services and the practice of family planning are used as performance variables in lieu of health status and fertility. The relationship between the use of health care and health is not clear-cut. Also those who practice family planning this month may drop it the next month.

One sampling problem is that those who are available and respond to all questions $m \in g$ and p is the response rate problem for this study is minimal for this study because of the sampling strategy adopted for this study. As mentioned before, we adopted a method of 100

Table 6-19a

Correlation Matrix*

1980	Da	ta
------	----	----

			•								n=	1216			1980	Data	_				
	FS	ED	ES	HW	мс	OM	СН	CW	UE	MV	SM	ĽΒ	ОJ	MA	HI	UM	SP	WD	SE	PO	MM
					100		0.00														
	.052	.080	.090	.108	.136	~.071	.065	D11	018	.042	.078	012	.025	.021	.108	030	034	011	065	.087	068
<i>V.</i> 2	.028	.052	.075	.072	.138	067	.051	.012	007	.047	.060	.018	.021	.013	.092	026	030	.005	063	.102	070
D. 3	.074	.089	.059	.119	.020	027	.052	001	032	004	.063	.014	.015	.038	.065	019	018	047	018	024	009
0.4	.055	.100	.084	.085	.113	057	.063	.015	004	£049	-087	021	.012	.014	.131	D19	031	023	082	.023	043
0.5	.066	. 155	.069	.053	.045	044	.079	.070	~.045	.082	.078	.008	.030	001	.107	026	014	030	040	026	- 007
D. 6	0.022	.012	.104	.003	.052	020	011	031	.024	027	.071	040	036	.022	.105	014	020	.007	~.044	004	018
D. 1	023	054	.208	.031	.121	044	~ .004	023	010	060	- ,044	.050	.032	016	077	024	034	.044	103	,269	137
D.8	004	.029	029	.168	1050	~.053	.038	010	.013	D33	.045	.028	.008	.034	.096	001	.007	038	021	047	.113
0.4	= HW	ł	ļ	'								I	(•							
0. 10 10 11	≕ Md	1																			
FS	IN C						i	1	I												
ED	084																				
ES	.001	360								Į .	l	ł	١	١	1	t	1	ļ			
HW	014	.113	.035						ŀ			t 	}								
MC	.062	.057	.097	.062																	
OM	.023	123	. 107	097	022												i				
CH	.043	.172	039	.086	033	269														ļ	
CW	066	.121	.032	.113	049	087	126														
UE	160	102	077	023	030	.092	040	042													
MV	017	.084	.053	.047	042	003	.076	015	053	 .											
SM	031	.385	.203	.080	013	108	.170	.111	092	110											
LB	-:095	063	257	018	031	044	022	.003	062	075	129										
OJ	029	.089	.01 0	.115	017	045	.042	.030	057	069	119	081									
MA	.012	.090	.080	.051	026	061	.037	002	066	.065	.055	077	.001								
ΗI	009	.307	.204	033	.009	019	.085	.017	.016	044	.484	038	015	.055							
UM	037	.040	016	042	.010	.036	037	018	019	023	.009	027	.011	015	009		}				
SP	066	.002	041	011	026	038	.020	026	.037	005	.085	.009	.015	201	.064	012					
WD	204	243	119	044	040	.068	107	056	.296	.026	120	010	011	051	079	025	036				
SE	.097	103	009	232	027	.067	045	- ,053	012	027	204	109	038	.001	081	.055	043	034			
PO	082	181	.010	.191	.016	.006	085	.043	.003	096	094	.013	. 162	069	198	031	0 15	.119	324		
MM	082	.087	110	.228	.004	.013	019	.036	013	.113	.059	0 09	043	.042	013	034	.026	046	335	342	

Table 6-19b

List of variables

- D₁ = Number of visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb doctor for curative or preventive services/month
- D₂ = Number of visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb doctor for curative services/month
- D₃ = Number of visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb doctor for preventive services/month
- D₄ = Weighted number of visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb doctor for preventive or curative services/month
- D₅ = Number of visits to individual Hospital for preventive or curative services/month
- D₆ = Number of visits to General Hospital for preventive or curative services/month
- $D_7 = Number of visits to Pharmacy/month$
- $D_{Q} = Number of visits to Health Center/month$
- $D_{o} = Number of Health worker's Home visits/month$
- D₁₀ = Number of visits to Hospital, Pharmacy, Health Center or Herb doctor for preventive or curative services/month (include only those households where there was one case of illness within a week prior to survey)
- D_{11} = Number of attendance at Mother's club/month
- FS = Family size
- ED = Education year of household Head
- ES = Economic Status
- $HW = D_q$

 $MC = D_{11}$

- CM = existence of old man or woman
- CH = existence of child
- CW = existence of child and pregnant woman
- UE = State of unemployment
- MV = Merchant or vendors
- SM = Workers on salary
- LB = Labourer
- QJ = Other occupations
- MA = Mother's attitude
- MI = Medical Insurance
- UM = Unmarried
- SP = Separated
- WD = Widow or widower
- SE = Seo Myon
- PO = Pogok Myon
- MM = Moonmak Myon

percent sampling of Enumeration Districts selected. By saturation tactic, we succeeded in getting over 90 percent response rate both in 1980 and 1981 except for Seo Myon, which had about 82 percent response rate in 1980. Nevertheless, Shindong Myon, the high integration area, consistently had a higher rate of response than the other three Myons. So-called "Hawthorne Effect" may be at work in sampling also.²

Another sampling problem we had is that information on the use of health facilities, health workers' home visits, the attendance of mothers' club meetings and episodes of illness has to be confined for the occurances during one month preceding the interview. This is because interviewees' recollectin of events beyond one month is hazy. To the extent to which the month preceding the interview was less typical one for a Myon's residents than for another Myon's residents, the data may be biased.

The selection of the sample, experimental site may also pose a problem for this study. Sindong Myon which has been chosen for high integration site had been also the demonstration site for the Seoul National University Community Health Program. Thus, the reactions of its residents to the integrated program may be different from those of other Myons' residents. However, the result may also be to strengthen the validity of the conclusions reached from this study. This is because that as Shindong Myon's residents had been receiving more attention than those living in other Myons, the reactions to the integrated program may be less pronounced than those of other Myons' residents.

Finally, there may be a sampling problem in that we failed to interview in 1981 all of those interviewed in the baseline survey in 1980. To the extent to which the inter-year sampling discrepency differs among the four Nyons, the inter-year analysis of data may be based on inaccurate data.

Footnotes

¹Yoel Haitovsky, "Regression Estimation from Grouped Observations," A National Bureau of Economic Research Working Paper, (261 Madison Avenue, New York 16, N.Y., October 1967.); J.S. Cramer, "Efficient Grouping, Regression and Correlation in Engel Curve Analysis," <u>Journal of American Statistical Association</u>, March 1964; and Yoel Haitovsky, "A Note on the Maximization of R-Square," A National Bureau of Economic Research Working Paper, (New York, January 1968).

²United Nations' Funds for Population Activities, <u>On Integration of Family</u> <u>Planning with Rural Development</u>, Policy Development Studies, No. 1, UNFPA, New York, 1979.

Chapter VII NAIN FINDINGS AND POLICY IMPLICATIONS

7.1 Main Findings on Hypotheses Testings

Three major hypotheses are tested in this study. They are:

I. Compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a better health and fertility control;

II. Compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a more active community participation; and

III. Compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a more efficient program performance. Hypothesis I is supported with a varying degree of statistical confidence level where the variation depends on the surrogate variable chosen to represent health and fertility and also on the sample population selected. Hypothesis II is supported with statistically satisfactory level of confidence. However, only one variable is used to represent community participation. Hypothesis III is supported so far as the available data indicate. However, the paucity of data preculde an conclusion with a statistically satisfactory level of confidence.

7.1.1 Result of Testing Hypothesis (I) on Health and Fertility

Comparative analyses are made of the program performance of the integrated program vs. the segmented program. The relative performances of the two types of programs are analyzed by examining the inter-temporarl changes between the baseline survey and the post-treatment survey in the inter-Myon differences in the performance variables. Due to the shortness of the period during which different program inputs are expected to exert influence on the performance variables, health status is represented by the tilization of health services and fertility by whether family planning is practiced or not.

In order to assess the "pure" effects of program inputs, multivariate analyses are conducted. They are designed to hold constant the effects on the performance variables of factors other than program inputs. In addition, comparative analyses of the relative performance of program inputs are made through cross tabulations and Chi-square tests of frequency distributions.

The results of the above analyses generally support the hypotheses I with a varying statistical level of confidence. Table 7-1 summarizes the result of the multiple regression analyses of the hypothesis (I) on health and fertility, which are represented by the utilization of health and family planning services. When the intensity of the utilization of health and family planning services are measured by the number of health workers' home visits, the hypothesis I is supported unequivocably for Shindong Myon (high integration area) vs. Pogok Myon (the light integration area) and for Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon (the control area II). For Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon (the control area I), the inter-year change in the inter-Myon difference in the visits is not statistically significant.

Note that in 1980, all the three Myons had more health workers' home visits than Shindong Myon and the differences were statistically significant except for Shindong Myon Vs. Seo Myon. In 1981, all the three Myons had less visits than Shindong Myon and the differences were all statistically significant. Thus, one may conclude that, after taking account of the effects of control variables, something happened between the two survey years that increased health workers' home visits in Shindong Myon (statistically) significantly more than those in other Myons. Clearly

Table 7-1: Summa Servi	ary of Findir ice as Depend	ngs of Multiple Regu dent Variables.	ression Analyses wit	th the Utilization o	of Health and Family	/ Planning
Performance Variables		Visits to Health Facilities for Curative and Preventive Care	Visits to Health Facilities for Curative Care	Visits to Health Facilities for Preventive Care	Health Workers' Home Visits	Practice of Family Planning
Inter-Myon Difference in 1980:	SH-SE SH-P SH-M	+ (.128) - (.347)** + (.353)**	+ (.010) - (.439)*** + (.254)	+ (.029) + (.093)* + (.099)*	- (.034) - (.503)*** - (.509)***	+ (.115)** + (.088)** + (.007)
Inter-Myon Difference in 1981:	SH-SE SH-P SH-M	- (.252) - (.699)*** + (.233)	- (.320)** - (.798)*** + (.207)	+ (.068) + (.099)* + (.020)	+ (.303)*** + (.329)*** + (.424)***	+ (.113)** + (.101)** + (.116)***
Significance of Inter-year Difference in Inter-Myon Difference, 1980 vs. 1981:	SH vs. SE SH vs. P SH vs. M SH vs. M	Yes * Yes * No	Yes* Yes* No	<u>2 2 2 2</u>	No Yes** Yes*	No Y es * Y es *
Explanatory Note:	 (1) Inter- where that that Shinc (2) Inter- of a Myon difference 	-Myon difference is t for Shindong Myon dong Myon has more -year difference in and 1981 b-coeffic is statistically s	as shown by b-coeff is omitted. For ex visits than Seo Myor inter-Myon differer ient of that Myon. significant and "no"	ficient of a dummy v kample, b-coefficien n, i.e., SH - SE = + nce means the differ Significance of "ye insignificant.	ariable representir it for Seo Myon of - .128. ence between the 19 is" means that the i	ng each Myon 128 means 980 b-coefficient inter-year
	(3) SH-SE P = Pogok	means Shindong Myor Myon and M = Moonma	i minus Seo Myon, i. ak Myon.	.e., inter-Myon diff	erence between the	two Myons.
	(4) *** ir	dicates the differe	ence is significant	t at .05 level, ** a	t.10 level and * a	at .20 level.
	(5) R squë	ares of all regressi	ions are significant	t of .01 level.		

known event is, of course, the introduction of the integrated program in Shindong Myon. Thus, a multivariate analysis supports the hypothesis I that compared with a segmented program, an integrated program leads to a better utilization of health and family planning services, when the services are represented by health workers' home visits. However, to the extent to which health workers' home visits represent program inputs rather than performance, this conclusion should be tempered.

When the utilization of health and family planning services is represented by the visits to health facilities for curative and preventive services, the hypothesis I is refuted for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon and for Shindong Myon vs. Pogok Myon. For Shindong Myon vs. Noonmak Myon, the inter-year change in the visits is statistically insignificant. Whereas Sindong Myon had more vists than Seo Myon in 1980, in 1981 the reverse was the case. Sindong Myon had less visits than Pogok Myon in 1980 but the difference decreased (statistically) significantly in 1981. Compared with Moonmak Myon, Shindong Myon had more visits in 1980, but the difference decreased insignificantly in 1981.

When the visits to health facilities are divided into two categories, namely, those for curative services and those for preventive services, the reason why Shindong Myon residents decreased the use of health facilities in comparison with the residents of the three other Myons becomes known. The reason is that Shindong Myon residents shifted the emphasis from curative visits to preventive visits between the survey years in comparison with those of the three other Myons. Whereas Shindong Myon residents significantly reduced the curative visits in comparison with others between 1980 and 1981, they increased the preventive visits more than the residents of the three other Myons.

This conclusion is supported when the inter-year differences in inter-Myon differences are examined for the use of health facilities by only those households which had at the least one case of illness in the family. Whereas Shindong Myon households with one or more illness visited health facilities less than those of Moonmak Myon in 1980, in 1981, the reverse was the case (see Tables 6-11a through 6-11c). The inter-year change is statistically significant. Shindong Myon residents with one or more illnesses also had less visits than Pogok Myon in 1980, but the difference decreased in 1981. Thus, when the sample is confined to those households which had at least one illness in the family, and when health care is represented by preventive service the Hypothesis I is supported.

When fertility control is represented by the practice of family planning, the Hypothesis I on fertility is also supported by the data analysis. After taking account of the effects of control variables on the practice of family planning, Shindong Myon residents increased family planning more than the residents of the three other Myon between 1980 and 1981. The inter-year change is statistically significant for Shindong Myon vs. Pogok Myon and Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon. But it is statistically insignificant for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon. To the extent to which the control variables did their jobs in holding constant their effects on the dependent variable, this inter-year change may be attributed to the program inputs between the survey years. In other words, the integrated program increased the family planing acceptors significantly more than the segmented program.

7.1.2 Result of Testing Hypothesis (II) on Community Participation

When the intensity of community participation is represented by the attendance at mothers' club meetings, the Hypothesis II on community participation is accepted for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon and for Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon at the significance level of .05 (see Tables 6-17a through 6-17c). For Shindong Myon vs. Pogok Myon (the light integration area), the difference in the inter-year change is statistically insignificant.

In 1980, after taking account of effects of control variables, Shindong Myon housewives attended mothers' club meetings more often than the residents of three other Myons. But the difference is statistically insignificant. Between 1980 and 1981, Shindong Myon housewives increased their attendance rate more than those residing in the three other Myons. The difference in the inter-year change is statistically significant for Shindong Myon vs. Seo Myon and Shindong Myon vs. Moonmak Myon.

The mothers' club was established in 1974. Since then, it has been a focal point of community activities about health, sanitation and family planning. To the extent to which Shindong Myon's increase was simply due to more attention given to its residents, the above conclusion should be qualified. It is to be noted, however, that the integrated program introduced into Shindong Myon involves a change in mode of delivery, not a change in the volume of services delivered.

7.1.3 Result of Testing Hypothesis III on Program Efficiency

The result of a comparative analysis of the "cost per service" supports the hypothesis III on program performance. The cost per service figures are obtaned by dividing the health center's monthly budget for each

Myon by the number of visits to the center and that of health workers' home visits. The cost per service for Shindong Myon (the high integration area) and that for Seo Myon (the control area I) declined by about 77 and 66 percent respectively between 1980 and 1981, while the cost per service increased slightly for Pogok Myon (the light integration area) and Moonmak Myon (the control area II). This situation is brought about by the fact that for Shindong Myon and Seo Myon, health workers' home visits increased 9 to 10 times, while the entire budget increased about 7 and 6 percent respectively between the survey years. For Pogok Myon and Moonmak Myon, the number of health workers' home visits declined slightly while the budget increased by about the same proportion, 7 percent, between 1980 and 1981. (See Tables 6-18a through 6-18c.) Thus, to the extent to which Shindong Myon's volume increase is due to the integrated program and to the extent to which a greater utilization of the program services indicate the program efficiency, the Hypothesis III on program efficiency is supported for Shindong Myon vs. Pogok and Moonmak Myons. It is to be noted here that, due to data limitations, no statistical tests are conducted.

7.2 Effects of Control Variables on the Performance Variables

When the effects of selected control variables on the performance variables are analyzed through regression analyses, the results by and large confirm those of previous studies and theoretical expectations. For example, economic status has an effect of increasing the acceptance rate of family planning and the use of health care. But its effect on the use of health care is generally insignificant. On the other hand, housewives of a higher economic status attend mothers' club meetings less often than those of a lower status.

The educational level of a household head has a positive effect on the use of health care, but except for health workers' home visits, it is statistically insignificant. Surprisingly, education has no significant effect on the acceptance rate of family planning. It has a positive effect on the attendance rate at mothers' club meetings, but the effect is . statistically insignificant.

Medical insurance has an effect of significantly increasing the use of health facilities for curative care but is effects on preventive visits are statistically insignificant. On the other hand, medical insurance has an effect of reducing the acceptance rate of family planning. Those who have medical insurance attend mothers' club meeting more often than those without, but the difference is statistically insignificant.

A Nothers' favorable attitude toward seeking medical care has an effect of increasing the use of health facilities. But it is statistically insignificant. It has no significant effect on the acceptance rate of family planning but it has an effect of increasing the attendance rate at mothers' club meetings.

7.3 Implications of Findings

The integration made in this program was achieved by an introduction of multipurpose workers. Multipurpose workers are trained to provide primary health care and family planning services together. The integration made is in the mode of delivery and it does not entail an increased use of resources and personnel in the provision of services. A health worker and a family planning practitioner were replaced by two multipurpose workers.

We have learned several things from this program which can be used to strengthen the integrated program to improve program performance. First,

it involves the training and reorientation of staff. The training should be conducted at two levels. One is to improve the professional ability of the staff to perform the integrated tasks assigned. The other is to improve the staff's commitment to integration.

As for improving the professional ability of the staff, teaching two different functional skills is not enough. Providing primary health care and family plannin services should be treated as one function. A trainer should have a definite idea of the process of producing a joint product which combines health and family planning services in a manner where one cannot be provided efficiently without the other. The functional relationship between the two inputs—health and family planning services—should be taught in such a manner as to enable the staff to acquire a distinctive skill which can be used only in an integrated mode of delivery. The past method of giving health workers additional training in family planning in the skills of providing a joint, integrated product of health and family planning from the very beginning.

To this end, it is recommended that a well-defined training program of integrated program should be established. Eventually, a licensing procedure should be set up for a new profession of integrated population-health practitioners. A task force may be established to define and elaborate on the objectives, content (including the curriculum) and end product of the training program and where the graduates may be employed in what capacity. The new training program should, in due time, be able to produce new specialists in integrated care to be licensed by the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs.

The second level of training recommended to be undertaken is on the orientation and conceputal level to improve the staff's commitment to integration. In the skill training, the close functional interrelationship between health and family planning services should be stressed. In conceptual training, the close interdependence between the end products of health and family planning should be emphasized. In the former, an integration of "production process" is to be taught. In the latter, the interdependence of the end product of health care and that of family planning services should be demonstrated to the staff so that the staff may be convinced of the desirability of the integrated method for the welfare of his clients.

For some time, it has been known for health workers in the poor neighborhood that a successful health care program for their clients is not the provision of medical care alone but an improvement in their diets and shelters, i.e., in their general living conditions. The fact that a similar relationship exists between health and fertility control should be known to the staff and clients. If and when the staff is convinced of the inseparate and synergistic nature of the effects of health and family planning services, the staff's commitment to the integration is bound to improve.

An improvement in the performance of an integrated program and an expansion of the integrated program involve three steps. First, they require a firm commitment to integration on the part of policy makers. Second, a commitment on the part of those who actually perform in the field is essential. Finally, community involvement and its belief in the desirability of the integrated program for its members' welfare are necessary.

Seen in this way, the first step in improving community involvement is the commitment of staff to integration. If staff is committed to integration, their enthusiasm is bound to be transmitted to their clients. Such staff-community interaction would lead to an improvement in community participation and in program performance. In the data analysis, it has been shown that community participation, as represented by the attendance at mothers' club meetings, had an effect of improving the performance as represented by the use of health care and the acceptance rate of family planning (see Tables 6-12a through 6-13b and Tables 6-16a and 6-17b). An improvement in program performance would encourage policy makers' (rumitment to integration and strengthen the staff's commitment. This would, in turn, further improve community participation. Thus, this process would bring about a cumulative chain reaction leading to a greater community involvement and a growing improvement in program performance.

In addition to the staff's commitment to integration, a campaign on the part of staff to convince their clients of the merit of an integrated program on the basis of interdependence between health and fertility control for the welfare of the community, would enhance community involvement. Such consumer education can be conducted without fanfare as a part of delivering service in the staff's daily contacts with community members.

In the context of Korea's national population program, policy implications gathered from this study are as follows. Commitment to integration by policy makers at all levels is essential. Second, a formal training program and a licensing procedure for the staff to be employed in integrated program should be established at a national level by the Ministry of Health and Social Affairs. Third, an evaluation and monitoring

system should be instituted to discover the weakness and strength of each integrated program so that an improvement can continually be made to fit each program to the need of each community. Finally, to enhance community involvement from the start of integrated program, the field staff should be recruited from the community members as a matter of program guideline.

An appropriate organization through which the initial implementation of the above recommendation can be made, is the New Village Movements (NVM). As mentioned in Chapter II, the NVM is a national organization established to enlist local participation in infrastructure development and income supplement programs. Although it was originally a rural organization, today it has a nationwide structure. In 1972, family planning program was included in the NVM. However, an effective integration of family planning program with the NVM activities has not been achieved. In 1978, family planning program was given only one percent in the total NVM activities achievement index for rural communities.

In 1980, the new administration proclaimed the establishment of a democrative welfare society as a national goal for 1980s. With a greater priority given to social and welfare aspects of development, health and family programs are given a greater emphasis in the total NVM activities. This time of expanding the role of health and family planning programs in rural development is opportune time to work toward an introduction of integrated program on a nationwide basis, preferably through the NVM.

As mentioned in Chapter II, however, integrated population program is still in an experimental stage in Korea. Before integrated program is adopted even in selected sites, more studies and experiments may be needed to convince policymakers of the desirability of integration. It is hoped that this study play a part in the process of persuading policymakers of the merit of the integrated approach.